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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
   

 The basic financial statements of the City of Pasadena, California (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 
significant accounting policies of the City are described below.    

 
 

(a) Reporting Entity 
 
The City was incorporated on June 19, 1886 as a Charter City, which operates under a 
Council-City Manager form of government.  The City is a municipal corporation governed 
by an elected mayor and seven council members. 
 

 As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City and its component units, 
entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable.  The City is 
considered to be financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting 
majority of that organization's governing body and the City is able to impose its will on 
that organization or there is a potential for that organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City.  The City is also considered to 
be financially accountable if that organization is fiscally dependent (i.e., it is unable to 
adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval 
from the City).  In certain cases, other organizations are included as component units if the 
nature and significance of their relationship with the City is such that their exclusion would 
cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
 
The two methods of reporting component unit data in the basic financial statements are 
blended and discrete presentation.  Blending is limited exclusively to when the board of 
the component unit is substantively the same as that of the City or if the component unit 
serves the City exclusively, or almost exclusively.   
 
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the 
City’s operations; data from these units are combined with data of the City.  Component 
units that do not meet the criteria for blending are included within financial statements as 
discrete presentations.  Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate 
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate 
from the government.  Similar to the City, each blended and discretely presented 
component unit has a June 30th year-end. 
 
Jointly governed organizations provide goods or services to the citizenry of two or more 
governments, but do not have an ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the 
participating governments. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Blended Component Units 
 
 
Pasadena Parking Authority (The Authority)  

The Authority was created by Resolution No. 1399, dated June 6, 1972 pursuant to the 
provisions of the Parking Law of 1949 (California Streets and Highways Code, Sections 
§32651 and §32661.1).  The City Council constitutes the governing board of the Authority 
pursuant to the aforementioned Resolution.  The primary purpose of the Authority is to 
establish parking facilities for motor vehicles within the City, to furnish motor vehicle 
parking spaces, and to care for such vehicles within any parking facility or space owned, 
controlled or operated by the Authority.  The City has operational responsibility for the 
Authority.   The Authority is reported as an Enterprise Fund and does not release a separate 
financial report. 
 
Pasadena Civic Improvement Corporation (PCIC)  

PCIC was created on August 9, 1985 pursuant to the Non-profit Public Benefit Corporation 
Law of the State of California (Title 1, Division 2, Part 2 of the California Corporations 
Code).  At the request of the City, PCIC was organized for the specific and primary purpose 
of providing financial assistance to the City by acquiring or constructing property and 
appurtenances for and on behalf of the City.  This is accomplished through the issuance of 
such financing instruments as certificates of participation.  The PCIC is a non-profit 
organization with three directors: Chief Executive Officer, Secretary/Financial Officer, and 
Assistant Executive Officer/Assistant Secretary.  PCIC's financial data and transactions are 
blended with the Debt Service and Capital Projects fund types.  The PCIC does not release 
a separate financial report. 

 
Pasadena Housing Authority (Housing Authority)  

Formerly known as the Local Housing Authority, the Pasadena Housing Authority 
administers the City's federally funded housing programs under contract with the United 
States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The Housing Authority’s 
purpose is to help provide safe and sanitary housing accommodations for citizens with low 
income.  It is governed by the City Council and the City has operational responsibility for 
the Authority. The Housing Authority’s financial data and transactions are blended as a 
Special Revenue Fund.  The Housing Authority does not release a separate financial report. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 

Blended Component Units (Continued) 
 
Pasadena Public Financing Authority (PPFA) 

The Pasadena Public Financing Authority was created through the joint exercise of powers 
agreement between the City and the Pasadena Community Development Commission 
(PCDC) dated April 24, 2000.  The purpose of creating the PPFA is to accomplish the 
purposes of the law and the Bond Pooling Act, including the financing of public capital 
improvements and the purchase of certain local obligations issued or incurred by the City, 
PCDC, or other public agencies or the sale of such local obligations or the issuance of 
bonds of the PPFA secured in whole or in part by such local obligations, or by any other 
designated source of revenues, all permitted by the law or the Bond Pooling Act.  The Bond 
Pooling Act authorizes and empowers the PPFA to, among other things, (i) issue bonds 
and to expend or loan the proceeds thereof to the City or PCDC, (ii) finance the acquisition 
and/or construction of public capital improvements and to sell or lease such improvements 
to the City or PCDC and (iii) purchase bonds issued by the City or PCDC, all for the 
purpose of financing public capital improvements, working capital, liability and other 
insurance needs, or certain other projects whenever there are significant public benefits, as 
determined by the City or PCDC. PCDC ceased operations as an entity on January 31, 
2012, and the City became the successor agency to the PCDC to perform all of PCDC’s 
continuing obligations.  PPFA’s financial data and transactions are blended with the Debt 
Service and Capital Projects fund types. The PPFA does not release a separate financial 
report. 
 

Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System (FPRS) 

FPRS was originally established by the City Charter in 1919.  The system was closed on 
June 30, 1977, but continues to pay out benefits to retirees and their beneficiaries.  FPRS 
covers all sworn fire and police personnel who were employed by the City prior to July 1, 
1977, except those who elected to transfer to the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) when the system closed.  FPRS is managed by a five-member 
Retirement Board.  Three of the members are appointed by the City Council.  The other 
two members represent firefighter and police officials, and are each appointed by their 
respective members.  Additional information related to FPRS is included in Note 18.  The 
FPRS’s Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements can be obtained by contacting 
the Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System, 100 North Garfield Avenue, N206, 
Pasadena, CA 91109. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 

Successor Agency to PCDC (Successor Agency) 

The Successor Agency to PCDC was created to serve, in a fiduciary capacity, as custodian 
for the assets and to wind down the affairs of the former Pasadena Community 
Development Commission (PCDC). The Successor Agency operates under the auspices of 
a legislatively formed oversight board who has authority over its financial affairs and 
supervises its operations and timely dissolution.  Its assets are held in trust for the benefit 
of the taxing entities within the former PCDC boundaries and as such are not available for 
City use. The accompanying financial statements include the Successor Agency under the 
statutorily required Private-Purpose Trust Fund.   

   
Discretely Presented Component Units 

  
The following organizations are considered to be discretely presented component units of 
the City: 

 
Rose Bowl Operating Company (RBOC) 

RBOC was incorporated on January 18, 1994, as a legally separate entity with the primary 
purpose of returning economic and civic value to the City by managing a world class 
stadium and a professional quality golf course complex in a residential open-space 
environment.  RBOC is governed by a thirteen-member board. Eleven members are 
appointed by the City Council, while the University of California, Los Angeles (UCLA) 
and the Tournament of Roses appoint one each.  RBOC operations are discretely presented 
in the accompanying financial statements since neither of the two criteria for blended 
component units, as described above, have been met. RBOC’s budget is reviewed and 
approved by the City Council.  RBOC is presented as an Enterprise Fund Type.  Separate 
component unit financial statements of RBOC are issued and available upon request from 
the RBOC Administration Office at 1001 Rose Bowl Drive, Pasadena, California 91103. 
RBOC was audited in accordance with Generally Accepted Governmental Auditing 
Standards. Additional information is available at www.rosebowlstadium.com.  
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued) 

 
Pasadena Center Operating Company (PCOC) 

PCOC was established on September 19, 1973, as a legally separate entity with the primary 
purpose of managing and operating the Pasadena Center, a civic facility designed for 
conferences, exhibitions, trade shows, assemblies, cultural, educational and recreational 
programs, and for the use, benefit and enjoyment of the public.  PCOC was also established 
to supervise the activities of the Pasadena Convention and Visitors Bureau.  PCOC is 
governed by a fourteen-member board who are appointed by the City Council.  The City 
provides a significant portion of the operating support of PCOC through allocation of the 
Transient Occupancy Tax collected by the City.  PCOC is presented as an Enterprise Fund.  
Separate component unit financial statements of PCOC are issued and available upon 
request from Pasadena Center Operating Company, 300 E. Green Street, Pasadena, CA 
91101. PCOC was audited in accordance with Generally Accepted Governmental Auditing 
Standards. Additional information is available at www.pasadenacenter.com.    
 
Pasadena Community Access Corporation Board (PCAC) 

PCAC was created by the City Council in July 1983 and established on December 9, 1983 
by Articles of Incorporation.  The PCAC's primary purpose is to provide a means for 
individuals or groups to use cable telecommunications in order to communicate and share 
information.  The PCAC board consists of eleven members.  Seven are appointed from 
each Council district, one each by the Mayor and City Manager, two members, including 
one representing Pasadena City College (PCC) and another one representing Pasadena 
Unified School District (PUSD) with residency required except for the PCC and PUSD 
representative. The City is able to impose its will on PCAC through it’s ability to appoint 
a majority of its board members.  PCAC’s budget is reviewed and approved by the City 
Council.  The City provides support through the 1% Public, Education, and Government 
(PEG) allocation.  Separate component unit financial statements of PCAC are issued and 
available upon request from Pasadena Community Access Corporation, 150 South Los 
Robles Avenue, Pasadena, CA 91101.   PCAC was audited in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Governmental Auditing Standards.  Additional information is available at 
www.pasadenamedia.webs.com. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Jointly Governed Organizations 
 
The following organizations are considered to be jointly governed organizations of the 
City: 

 
Bob Hope Airport 

The Bob Hope Airport is under the governance of the Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport 
Authority (Airport Authority). The Airport Authority is a separate agency created in 1977 
under a joint powers agreement between the three cities for the sole purpose of owning and 
operating the Bob Hope Airport. Three commissioners from each city, appointed by each 
city's respective city council, make up the nine members of the Airport Authority. There is 
no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments. Additional 
information is available at www.burbankairport.com.  
 

County of Los Angeles (County) 

Under a Joint Powers Agreement dated November 22, 1966, both the City and the County 
participated in the construction of a parking structure at 199 North Garfield Avenue, 
Pasadena, California. In 1985, the County exercised an option to purchase the structure 
from the Retirement Board of the Los Angeles County Employees' Retirement Association, 
at which time the City became tenant in common, holding a 30% share of the facility. 
 
Foothill Air Support Team (FAST) 

On July 31, 2000, the cities of Monrovia, Arcadia, Azusa, Covina, West Covina, and 
Pasadena formed a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) for police helicopter services known as 
the FAST. Currently, the cities of Alhambra, Arcadia, Covina, Glendora, Monrovia, 
Pasadena, Pomona, San Marino, Sierra Madre, and South Pasadena are parties to the 
JPA. This arrangement provides police helicopter support to a number of neighboring cities 
on an hourly cost reimbursement basis. The City of Pasadena operates a fleet of police 
helicopters which it has made available for a limited set number of weekend hours and then 
on an on call basis.  Cities are billed for their actual utilization. FAST does not own or 
operate helicopters, has not issued debt, and cannot levy taxes. The City bears the burden 
of purchasing, operating, maintaining, and providing helicopter support. It does so under 
the City’s General Fund. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(a) Reporting Entity (Continued) 
 
Jointly Governed Organizations (Continued) 
 
Rose Bowl Aquatics Center (RBAC) 

On December 11, 1987, the City and the RBAC entered into an Operating and License 
Agreement for RBAC to build and operate swimming facilities owned by the City in the 
designated area of Brookside Park.  The most recent Operating and License Agreement has 
a 15-year term with 3 five-year extensions and was executed on June 3, 2008.  The City 
leases the property to the RBAC for $1 per year and provides various financial and 
operational supports to the community aquatics facility.  In return RBAC operates as a 
year- round community aquatics facility, is responsible for capital improvements and 
repairs, and provides scholarship assistance and community services.  The City Council 
and Mayor appoint 5 of the 21 member of the RBAC Board of Directors. 
 
Foothill Workforce Development Board (FWDB) 

Developed 35 years ago, the City Council approved a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) 
among the cities of Arcadia, Duarte, Monrovia, Sierra Madre, South Pasadena, and 
Pasadena. The JPA created the Foothill Employment and Training Consortium (FETC) 
which the City of Pasadena is the fiscal agent and has the authority to receive and 
administer workforce development  funds.  FETC formed the Foothill Workforce 
Development Board (FWDB) to take the lead in developing the implementation plan for 
workforce development services for job seekers and businesses.  The mission is to support 
economic growth in the San Gabriel Valley by investing in skill development and job 
training to ensure that businesses have qualified workforce talent and job seekers have 
career opportunities.  The FWDB’s Americas Job Center of California is located at 1207 
East Green Street in Pasadena and is funded through the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act (WIOA). 
 

(b) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
The basic financial statements of the City are composed of the following: 
 

• Government-wide financial statements 
 

• Fund financial statements 
 

• Notes to the basic financial statements 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(b) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government 
as a whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statements include separate columns 
for the governmental and business-type activities of the primary government (including its 
blended component units), as well as it’s discretely presented component units. 
Eliminations have been made in the statement of activities so that certain allocated 
expenses are recorded only once (by function to which they were allocated). However, 
general governmental expenses have not been allocated as indirect expenses to the various 
functions of the City. 
 
Government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the economic resources 
measurement focus, all economic resources and obligations of the reporting government 
(both current and long-term) are reported in the government-wide financial statements. 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities are recognized in accordance with 
various GASB Statements. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function.  Program revenues are netted with program expenses 
in the statement of activities to present the net cost of each program.  Taxes and other items 
not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide 
financial statements, rather than reported as expenditures. Proceeds of long-term debt are 
recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as another 
financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the City are reported 
as a reduction of the related liability, rather than as expenditures. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(b) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The underlying accounting system of the City is organized and operated on the basis of 
separate funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The 
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as 
appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds 
based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending 
activities are controlled.  
 
Fund financial statements for the City are governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds 
and they are presented after the government-wide financial statements. These statements 
display information about major funds individually and non-major funds in the aggregate 
for governmental and enterprise funds. Fiduciary statements include financial information 
for fiduciary funds and similar component units. Fiduciary funds of the City primarily 
represent assets held by the City in a custodial capacity for other individuals or 
organizations. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the modified-

accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they become measurable 
and available as net current assets. Measurable means that the amounts can be estimated, 
or otherwise determined. Available means that the amounts were collected during the 
reporting period or soon enough thereafter to be available to finance the expenditures 
accrued for the reporting period. The City uses a sixty-day availability period. The City 
accrues the following revenue types: taxes, licenses, fines and forfeits, and miscellaneous 
revenues. 
 
Revenue recognition is subject to the measurable and availability criteria for the 
governmental funds in the fund financial statements. Exchange transactions are recognized 
as revenues in the period in which they are earned (i.e., the related goods or services are 
provided). Locally imposed derived tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the period 
in which the underlying exchange transaction   on   which   they   are   based   takes   place.   
Imposed non-exchange transactions are recognized as revenues in the period for which 
they were imposed. If the period of use is not specified, they are recognized as revenues 
when an enforceable legal claim to the revenues arises or when they are received, 
whichever occurs first. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
(b) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 

 
  Governmental Funds, (Continued) 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented using the current 

financial resources measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current 
liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. The reported fund balance (net 
current assets) is considered to be a measure of “available spendable resources.” 
Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing 
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 
Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of “available 
spendable resources” during a period. 

 
Non-current portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are reported on 
their balance sheets in spite of their spending measurement focus. Special reporting 
treatments are used to indicate that they should not be considered “available spendable 
resources,” since they do not represent net current assets. Recognition of governmental 
fund type revenues represented by non-current receivables are deferred until they become 
current receivables. Non-current portions of other long-term receivables are reflected in 
non-spendable fund balance. 

 
Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental 
fund types excludes amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not affect 
net current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type 
expenditures or fund liabilities. 

 
Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year that 
resources were expended, rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of long-term debt are 
recorded as other financing source rather than as a fund liability. Amounts paid to reduce 
long-term indebtedness are reported as fund expenditures. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenses are 
considered to be paid first from restricted resources, and then from unrestricted resources. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
(b) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 

 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City’s Enterprise and Internal Service Funds are proprietary funds. In the fund 
financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when the 
related goods or services are delivered. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds 
are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets 
and all liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activity are 
included on their balance sheets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present 
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.  
 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  
The principal operating revenues of the Light and Power Fund, Water Fund, Off Street 
Parking Facilities Fund and of the City’s Internal Service Funds are charges to customers 
for sales and services.  Operating expenses for the Enterprise Funds and Internal Service 
Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses. 

 
Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the proprietary fund 
financial statements, rather than reported as expense. Proceeds of long-term debt are 
recorded as a liability in the proprietary fund financial statements. Amounts paid to reduce 
long-term liability of the proprietary funds are reported as a reduction of the related 
liability. 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
The City’s fiduciary funds include Pension Trust Funds, Agency Funds, and Private-
Purpose Trust Funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. Such funds have no equity accounts since all assets 
are due to individuals or entities at some future time. Pension Trust Funds are used to 
account for resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries 
of benefit and contribution plans. Private-Purpose Trust Funds are to account for receipt of 
incremental property tax and payment of enforceable obligations (debts) of the former 
redevelopment agency. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

 (c) Major Funds, Internal Service Funds and Fiduciary Fund Types 
 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund – The primary fund of the City is used to account for all general revenues of 
the City not specifically levied or collected for other City funds and for expenditures related 
to the rendering of general services by the City. 
 
Project Management Capital Projects Fund – Used to account for all capital improvement 
projects, except for those involving the utilities, and special assessment districts, where 
revenues are received from grants by other governments, private parties, and through 
transfer from other City funds.  
 
General Debt Service Fund - to account for the payment of interest and principal of the 
2015 pension bonds and other city-wide obligations. 
 
Housing Successor Fund - to account for the use of property tax increment legally restricted 
for increasing or improving housing for low and moderate income households effective 
February 1, 2012. 
 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
Light and Power Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s electric utility; a 
self-supporting activity that renders services on a user-charge basis to residents and 
businesses as prescribed by the City Charter. 
 
Water Fund – Used to account for the operations of the City’s water utility; a self-
supporting activity that renders services on a user-charge basis to residents and businesses 
as prescribed by the City Charter. 
 
Off Street Parking Fund – In FY 2014, the City combined all of the parking funds into the 
Off Street Parking Fund.  This fund is used to account for the operation of the parking 
facilities throughout the City. 
 
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 
 
Special Revenue Funds - Used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted 
to expenditure for particular purposes.   
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(c) Major Funds, Internal Service Funds and Fiduciary Fund Types (Continued) 
 
Permanent Funds - Used to account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent 
that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s 
programs. 
 
Internal Service Funds – Used to account for computing and communication services, 
building maintenance, fleet maintenance, employee benefits, workers’ compensation and 
general liability, equipment leasing, printing and mail services to other departments or 
agencies of the City. 
 
Pension Trust Funds – Used to account for transactions of the FPRS and the City’s Deferred 
Compensation Plan. 
 
Agency Funds – These funds account for assets held by the City on behalf of assessment 
district bondholders, the Foothill Employment and Training Consortium, and assets held 
for certain joint powers organizations. 
 
Private-Purpose Trust Funds – To account for the receipt of incremental property tax and 
payment of enforceable obligations (debts) of the former redevelopment agency that were 
approved on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by the California Department 
of Finance until all enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been 
paid in full and all assets have been liquidated.  
 

(d) Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash or so 
near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of 
changes in interest rates.  Cash equivalents also represent the Proprietary Funds’ share in 
the City’s cash and investment pool.  Cash equivalents have an original maturity date of 
three months or less from the date of purchase.   
 

(e) Cash and Investments 
 
Investments are reported in the accompanying financial statements at fair value based on 
quoted market prices, except for certain certificates of deposit, money market investments 
that mature within one year of acquisition and investment contracts that are reported at cost 
because they are not transferable, they have terms that are not affected by changes in market 
interest rates, and provided that the fair value of those investments is not significantly 
affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(e) Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Both realized and unrealized changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are 
recognized and recorded as net changes in fair value of investments.  Investment earnings 
include interest earnings and all other investment income. 
 
The City pools cash and investments of all funds, except for certain fund specific City held 
portfolios, deferred compensation assets, and assets held by fiscal agents.  Each fund’s 
share in this pool is displayed in the accompanying financial statements as cash and 
investments.   Investment income earned by the pooled investments is allocated to the 
various funds based on each fund’s average cash and investment balance, except for 
investment earnings associated with the following funds not legally required to receive 
pooled investment earnings that have been assigned to and recorded as revenue in the 
General Fund, as provided by the legal provisions of the California Government Code 
Section §53647:  Health, Housing and Community Development, Project Management, 
Workers’ Compensation, General Liability, Employment and Training, South Lake 
Business Improvement District and Old Pasadena Business Improvement District.  
 
The City enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify rates on outstanding debts.  
Other than the net interest expenditures resulting from these agreements, no amounts are 
recorded in the financial statements.  

 
 (f) Due from Other Governments 

 
The amounts recorded as a receivable, due from other governments, include grant revenues 
and other state subventions, collected or provided by Federal, State, County and City 
Governments and unremitted to the City as of June 30, 2019. 

 
 (g) Inventories 

 
Inventories held by the Light and Power Fund and Water Fund (Enterprise Funds) are carried at the 
lower of weighted average cost or market computed on a first-in /first-out basis depending on the 
type of inventory.  There are three types of inventory, those held for consumption in operations, 
those capitalized, and inventory held for resale.    Inventories held by the Fleet Maintenance Fund 
(Internal Service Fund) are carried at average cost.  Inventory items are accounted for as an 
expenditure or expense when consumed or sold. 

 
 (h) Advances to Other Funds 

 
Long-term interfund advances are recorded as a receivable and as non-spendable fund 
balance by the advancing governmental fund. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 (i) Prepaids 
 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid assets. The City utilizes the allocation method to record its prepaids.  
The prepaid assets recorded in the Governmental Funds do not reflect current appropriable 
resources and, thus, an equivalent portion of fund balance is unspendable.  

 
(j) Restricted Cash and Investments 

 
The City considers all cash and investments from bond proceeds in Proprietary Funds as 
restricted. The City is legally mandated under bond indentures to use these resources only 
for the purposes specified. Also included as restricted cash and investments are amounts 
accumulated in the Light and Power Fund for the purpose of meeting future contractual 
commitments including the Stranded Investment Reserve (SIR) Utilization Plan which is 
discussed under Note 12 – Restricted Net Position, deferred compensation and all cash and 
investments belonging to Pension Trust and Agency Funds which are held by trustees. 

 
(k) Property Held for Resale 

 
Property held for resale represents land, structures, and their related improvements that 
were acquired for resale.  This includes the properties acquired in accordance with the 
objective of the former Pasadena Community Development Commission (PCDC) project 
area. 
 
On December 29, 2011 the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 that 
provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in California. The bill provides 
that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the City or another unit of local 
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until they are 
distributed to other units of state and local government. The City Council elected to become 
the Successor Agency on January 30, 2012. 

 
(l) Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets (including infrastructure) greater than $10,000 are capitalized and recorded 
at cost or at the estimated fair value of the assets at the time of acquisition where complete 
historical records have not been maintained.  Contributed capital assets, works of art, and 
capital assets received in a service concession agreements are reported at acquisition value. 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.  
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(l) Capital Assets, (Continued) 
 
Capital assets include public domain (infrastructure) general assets consisting of certain 
improvements including roads, streets, sidewalks, medians, sewer systems and storm 
drains.   
 
Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
life of the asset in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial 
statements of the proprietary funds.  
 
A summary of the estimated useful lives of capital assets is as follows: 
 

Production Plant 20 to 40 years Source of Supply 20 to 50 years

Transmission Plant 25 to 40 years Pumping Plant 10 to 50 years

Distribution Plant 20 to 40 years Treatment Plant 10 to 20 years

General Plant 10 to 40 years Transmission and

Equipment   4 to 10 years Distribution Plant 10 to 80 years

General Plant   6 to 50 years

Equipment   4 to 10 years

Building and Building and

Improvements 20 to 50 years Improvements 20 to 50 years

Machinery and Machinery and

Equipment   2 to 20 years Equipment   2 to 20 years

Infrastructure   8 to 200 years

Building and Machinery and

Improvements 20 to 50 years Equipment   2 to 20 years

Light and Power Fund Water Fund

Governmental Activities All Other Business-Type Activities

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary Funds

 
 

(m) Insurance Claims Payable  
 

The City records a liability for material litigation, judgments, and claims (including 
incurred but not reported losses) when it is probable that an asset has been significantly 
impaired or a material liability has been incurred prior to year- end and the probable amount 
of loss (net of any insurance coverage) can be reasonably estimated.  These claims are only 
recorded on a case-by-case basis.  These liabilities are recorded and liquidated from the 
City’s Workers’ Compensation and General Liability Internal Service Funds.  As 
mentioned in more detail in Note 16, excess liability insurance covers claims greater than 
the self-insurance thresholds. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
(n) Compensated Absences 

 
The City accounts for compensated absences including accumulated vacation, floating 
holidays, and compensatory time-off, and certain sick leave in the Benefits Internal Service 
Fund.  Management time off is recorded under departmental expense as incurred.  Upon 
separation, employees are paid for all of their unused vacation leave, floating holidays, 
management time off, and compensatory time-off subject to maximums described below. 

 
Eligible employees accumulate 3 to 22 days of vacation each year, depending on the 
employee’s bargaining unit and length of service, but may not carry over from one year to 
the next more than the equivalent of one to three (depends on Memorandum of 
Understanding or Salary Resolution) year’s vacation without prior approval of the 
respective department head and/or City Manager. 

 
A liability is recorded for unused vacation and similar compensatory leave balances since 
the employees' entitlement to these balances are attributable to services already rendered 
and it is probable that virtually all of these balances will be liquidated by either paid time-
off or payments upon termination or retirement.  The City does not accrue for unused 
holiday and management time off. 

 
Compensated absences are primarily liquidated by the General Fund, Light and Power 
Fund and Water Fund. 
 
Sick pay benefits only accumulate; they can be converted at retirement from the City for 
PERS Service Credit.  Consistent with this policy, the City does not accrue sick pay 
benefits. 

 
The total outstanding vacation, compensatory time-off obligations are accrued at fiscal 
year-end and included under “Compensated Absences” in the Benefits Internal Service 
Fund as a current liability.  See Note 9.  The total actual payments in FY 2019 and FY 2018 
were 90% and 88% of prior year accruals, respectively.   
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(o) Net Pension Liability  
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 

position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined 
on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office, and are in 
accordance with the implementation of GASB Statement No, 68. Investments are reported 

at fair value. CalPERS audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can 
be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.  See Note 18 for additional 
details. 

 
 (p) Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pension Obligation  

 

For purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the 
fiduciary net position of the City’s OPEB plan, and additions to/deductions from the OPEB 

Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined by an independent actuary. For this 
purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. See Note 19 for additional 

details. 
 

 (q) Bond Premiums / Discounts / Issuance Costs 
 
For Governmental-Wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Funds financial statements, 
issuance costs are recognized during the current period.  Any bond premiums and discounts 

are capitalized and amortized over the life of the bonds.  Bond proceeds are reported as 
other financing sources net of any applicable discount or premium.  The City implemented 
GASB Statement No. 65 beginning with FY 2014. 

 
 (r) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

 

Pursuant to GASB Statements No. 63 and 65, the City recognizes deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources.  A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net 
position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.  A deferred 

inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period.  See Note 8 for additional details. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

(s) Fund Balance 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balance is made up of the following 
components: 
 

• Non-spendable fund balance is the portion of fund balance that cannot be spent due to 
form.  Examples include inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term loans, notes 
receivable, and property held for resale, unless the proceeds are restricted, committed 
or assigned.  Also, amounts that must be maintained intact legally or contractually, 
such as the principal of a permanent fund are reported within the non-spendable 
category. 

 

• Restricted fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is subject to externally 
enforceable limitations by law, enabling legislation or limitations imposed by creditors 
or grantors. 

 

• Committed fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is subject to self-imposed 
constraints due to City Council resolutions, as they have the highest level of decision-
making authority. 

 

• Assigned fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is constrained by the City’s 
intent to utilize fund balance for a specific purpose. The authority to assign fund 
balance has been delegated by the City Council to the Finance Director through the 
Fund Balance Policy. 

 

• Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This 
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that 
has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general 
fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund 
balance amount. In a governmental fund other than the general fund, expenditures 
incurred for a specific purpose might exceed the amounts in the fund that are restricted, 
committed, and assigned to that purpose and a negative residual balance for that 
purpose may result 

 
The accounting policies of the City consider restricted fund balance to have been spent first 
when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both the restricted and unrestricted 
fund balance is available.  Similarly, when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which 
amounts in any of the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the City 
considers committed amounts to be reduced first, followed by assigned and then 
unassigned amounts. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
(s) Fund Balance (Continued) 
 

In June 2017 City Council directed staff to revise the Fund Balance Policy to split the 
General Fund Emergency Contingency into two components of committed fund balance, 
the General Fund Emergency Contingency Reserve and a General Fund Operating Reserve.  
The goal of a 20 percent General Fund reserve as committed fund balance continues, but 
is split 15 percent to the Emergency Contingency Reserve and 5 percent to the Operating 
Reserve.  These percentages continue to be calculated using that year’s General Fund 
budgeted appropriations.  It is intended that these committed fund balances would not be 
reduced below a 20 percent level without the direction of Council or upon a declared local 
emergency. 
 

 (t) Property Taxes 
 

The assessment, levy and collection of property taxes are the responsibility of the County 
of Los Angeles. The City records property taxes as revenue when received from the 
County, except at year-end, when property taxes received within 60 days are accrued as 
revenue. Property taxes are assessed and collected each fiscal year according to the 
following property tax calendar: 

 

Lien January 1

Levy July 1 to June 30

Due November 1 - 1st installment

March 1 - 2nd installment

Collection December 10 - 1st installment

April 10 - 2nd installment
 

 
Property taxes on the secured roll are due in two installments; on November 1 and March 
1 of the fiscal year. If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, 
respectively, and a 10% penalty attaches to any delinquent payment.  Such delinquent 
property may thereafter be redeemed by payment of the delinquent taxes and the delinquent 
penalty, plus a redemption penalty of 1% per month to the time of redemption. If taxes are 
unpaid for a period of five years or more, the property is then subject to sale by the County 
Tax Collector. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)  
 
(t) Property Taxes, (Continued) 
 

Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due as of the January 1 lien date and become 
delinquent, if unpaid, on August 31. A 10% penalty attaches to delinquent taxes on property 
of the unsecured roll, and an additional penalty of 1% per month begins to accrue. 
Collection of delinquent unsecured taxes is the responsibility of the County of Los Angeles 
using the several means legally available. 

 
(u) Use of Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenditures. The City has made certain estimates and 
assumptions relating to the revenues due and expenditures incurred through fiscal year- 
end, collectability of its receivables, the valuation of property held for resale, the useful 
lives of the capital assets, and the ultimate outcome of claims and judgments. Actual results 
may differ from those estimates and assumptions. 
 

(v) Interfund Activities 
 

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards 
to interfund activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of 
Net Position have been eliminated except those representing balances between the 
governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as internal 
balances and eliminated in the total government column. In the statement of activities, 
internal services funds transactions have been eliminated. However, transactions between 
governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. 
 

(w) Endowments 
 

The City has been the recipient of endowments that are recorded in Permanent Funds. The 
endowments are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may 
be used for purposes that support the City’s programs or specific restrictions that were 
placed on the endowment when the donation to the City was made.  Please refer to the 
Permanent Funds section for additional details. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
(x) Future GASB Statements 

 
Below is a summary of the GASB Statements that will be implemented in future financial 
statements (note all effective dates reflect that the provisions of these statements are 
effective for financial statements periods beginning after the date stated): 
 

Statement Effective for Fiscal Year

No. Title Beginning On or After

84 Fiduciary Activities December 15, 2018

87 Leases December 15, 2019

89 Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before 

the end of a Construction Period

December 15, 2019

90 Majority Equity Interests - an amendment of 

GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61

December 15, 2018

91 Conduit Debt Obligations December 15, 2020

 
Management is in the process of evaluating the impact of the statements to be implemented for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020 and beyond.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, management does not 
anticipate any significant impact from the new statements on the financial statements. 
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(2) Cash and Investments 
 

Primary Government (excluding FPRS Cash and Investments) 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019 are classified in the accompanying financial 
statements as follows: 

 
 

Statement of net position:

    Cash and investments 589,245,637$      

    Restricted cash and investments 117,443,789        

Fiduciary funds:

    Cash and cash equivalents 310,157,337        

          Total cash and investments 1,016,846,763$    

Cash on hand                                                         92,512$              

Deposits with financial institutions                       8,832,557           

Investments                                                      1,007,921,694     

Total cash and investments                     1,016,846,763$    

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019 consist of the following:
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Primary Government (excluding FPRS Cash and Investments) (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment 
Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California 
Government Code and the City’s investment policy. The table also identifies certain provisions of 
the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, if more restrictive) that address 
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address 
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt 
agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or 
the City’s investment policy.  
 
 

Authorized By * Maximum * Maximum

Investment Types Investment * Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds Yes 5 years None None

US Treasury Obligations Yes 5 years None None

US Agency Securities Yes 5 years None None

Banker's Acceptance Yes 180 days 40% 30%

Commercial Paper Yes 270 days 15% 10%

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 30% None

Repurchase Agreement Yes 1 year None None

Reverse Repurchase Agreements Yes 92 days 20% of base value None

Time Deposits Yes N/A 25% None

Medium Term Notes Yes 5 years 30% 5%

Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%

Money Market Mutual Funds Yes N/A 20% 10%

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities Yes 5 years 20% None

Corporate Bonds Yes 5 years 20% 10%

County Pooled Investment Fund Yes N/A None None

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Yes N/A None None

JPA Pools (other investment pools) Yes N/A None None

Registered State Warrants Yes N/A None None

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive  
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Primary Government (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt 
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s 
investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for 
investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt 
agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  
 

Maximum

Authorized Investment Type Maturity

US Treasury Obligations None

US Agency Securities None

Banker's Acceptance 360 days

Commercial Paper 270 days

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A

Investment Contracts 20-30 years

Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds None

Repurchase Agreements 1 year

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A

General Obligation Bonds None
 

 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the fair value of the 
investment is more susceptible to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City 
manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer 
term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is 
maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and 
liquidity needed for operations.  
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Primary Government (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments 
held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that 
shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity: 

 
 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More Than

Investment Type Total or Less Months Months 60 Months

Corporate Bonds 125,992,180$        42,434,161$       51,151,130$       32,406,889$       -$                   

Supernationals 34,640,731            9,612,736          4,714,706          20,313,289         -                     

Federal Agency Securities 389,851,166          79,139,237         155,831,448       138,430,819       16,449,662      

Municipal Bond 30,356,348            19,802,966         4,222,671          3,492,616          2,838,095        

Certificate of Deposit 975,888                975,888             -                       -                       -                     

Money Market Funds 14,413,173            14,413,173         -                       -                       -                     

Commercial Paper Disc 4,841,420             4,841,420          -                       -                       -                     

Negotiable CD 4,899,758             4,899,758          -                       -                       -                     

State Investment Pool 43,057,959            43,057,959         -                       -                       -                     

US Treasury 23,750,670            19,149,115         2,296,384          2,305,171          -                     

Held by Bond Trustee:

    Federal Agency Securities 16,048,838            8,670,693          6,197,826          1,180,319          -                     

    Money Market Funds 4,223,313             4,223,313          -                       -                       -                     

    Investment Contracts -                          -                       -                       -                       -                     

Held by OPEB Trustee:

    Mutual Fund 2,124,821             2,124,821          -                       -                       -                     

Held by Pension Section 115 Trustee:

    Mutual Fund 11,226,289            11,226,289         -                       -                       -                     

Deferred Compensation Plan:

    Mutual Fund 301,519,140          301,519,140       -                       -                       -                     

     Total 1,007,921,694$      566,090,669$     224,414,165$     198,129,103$     19,287,757$     

Remaining Maturity (in Months)
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Primary Government (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a notional recognized 
statistical rating organization.  Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where 
applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and 
the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type. 
 

 
Minimum

Legal Not

Investment Type Rating AAA Aa A Rated

Corporate Bonds 125,992,180$         A 20,714,466$             50,526,829$       54,750,885$            -$                     

Supernationals 34,640,731             A 34,640,731               -                       -                            -                       

Federal Agency Securities 389,851,166           N/A 389,851,166             -                       -                            -                       

Municipal Bond 30,356,349             N/A 2,727,843                24,502,644        3,125,862               -                       

Certificate of Deposit 975,888                 A -                             -                       -                            975,888             

Money Market Funds 14,413,173             A -                             -                       -                            14,413,173        

Comerical Paper 4,841,420              N/A -                             4,841,420          -                            -                       

Negotiable CD 4,899,758              N/A -                             4,899,758          -                            -                       

State Investment Pool 43,057,959             N/A -                             -                       -                            43,057,959        

US Treasury 23,750,670             N/A 23,750,670               -                       -                            -                       

Held by Bond Trustee:

    Federal Agency Securities 16,048,837             N/A 16,048,837               -                       -                            -                       

    Money Market Funds 4,223,313              A 4,223,313                -                       -                            -                       

Held by OPEB Trustee:

    Mutual Fund 2,124,821              N/A -                             2,124,821          -                            -                       

Held by Pension Section 115 Trustee:

    Mutual Fund 11,226,289             N/A -                             11,226,289        -                            -                       

Deferred Compensation Plan:

    Mutual Fund 301,519,140           N/A -                             301,519,140       -                            -                       

     Total 1,007,921,694$       491,957,026$           399,640,901       57,876,747$            58,447,020$       

N/A Not Applicable

Rating as of Year-End

 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the Entity contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in 
any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one 
issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that 
represent 5% or more of total Entity investments are as follows: 
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk (Continued) 
 

Investment Reported

Issuer Type Amount

Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Securities 123,544,659$    

Federal National Mortgage Assoc. Federal Agency Securities 110,055,070      

Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Securities 95,864,006       

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency Securities 70,019,799       

Local Agency Investment Fund State Investment Pool 44,121,827       

World Bank Corporate Bond 35,496,628       

 
 

Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the 
City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure 
to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: 
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state 
or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a 
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value 
of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public 
deposits.  
 
As of June 30, 2019, $0 of the City’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal 
depository insurance limits was held in uncollateralized accounts.  
 
For investments identified herein as held by bond trustee, the bond trustee selects the investment 
under the terms of the applicable trust agreement, acquires the investment, and holds the investment 
on behalf of the reporting government. 
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 

Investment in State Investment Pool 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated 
by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. 
The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for 
the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available 
for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 
amortized cost basis.  
 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset or liability.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs. Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. The City utilizes a third party software that obtains live data from 
active Bloomberg prices to determine the fair market value of investments held. 
 
The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019: 

 

Measure by Fair Value 1 2 3 Total

Corporate Bonds -$                    125,992,180$         -$                125,992,180$    

Supernationals -                      34,640,731            -                  34,640,731        

Federal Agency Securities -                      389,851,166           -                  389,851,166      

Municipal Bond -                      30,356,349            -                  30,356,349        

Certificate of Deposit -                      975,888                 -                  975,888            

Money Market Funds -                      14,413,173            -                  14,413,173        

Commercial Paper Disc -                      4,841,420              -                  4,841,420         

Negotiable CD -                      4,899,758              -                  4,899,758         

State Investment Pool -                      43,057,959            -                  43,057,959        

US Treasury -                      23,750,670            -                  23,750,670        

Held by Bond Trustee:

    Federal Agency Securities -                      16,048,837            -                  16,048,837        

    Money Market Funds -                      4,223,313              -                  4,223,313         

Held by OPEB Trustee:

    Mutual Fund -                      2,124,821              -                  2,124,821         

Held by Pension Section 115 Trustee:

    Mutual Fund -                      11,226,289            -                  11,226,289        

Deferred Compensation Plan:

    Mutual Fund -                      301,519,140           -                  301,519,140      

    Total -$                    1,007,921,694$      -$                1,007,921,694$  

Level
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(3) Accounts Receivable 
 
 As of June 30, 2019, the accounts receivable are categorized as follows: 
 

Project

Management Non-Major

Capital General Housing Governmental Internal

General Project Debt Service Successor Funds Service

Governmental activities:

Accounts receivable 5,750,222$       3,636,425$        -$                    5,145$            8,549,535$        88,190$       

Accrued revenue 

receivable 17,932,405       249,431            17,596              -                    3,437,181          90,389         

Interest receivable 553,126           -                      -                      3,423             860,416            129,822       

Paramedics receivable 4,186,344         -                      -                      -                    -                      -                 

Utility receivable 1,158,136         -                      -                      -                    503,036            -                 

29,580,233       3,885,856          17,596              8,568             13,350,168        308,401       

Less: allowance for un-

collectible amounts (2,191,069)        -                      -                      -                    (36,082)             -                 

Total 27,389,164$     3,885,856$        17,596$            8,568$            13,314,086$      308,401$     

Light and Off-Street Non-Major

Power Water Parking Proprietary

Business-type activities:

Accounts receivable 576,603$          330,101$          336,865$          205,207$        

Accrued revenue 

receivable 13,576,392       5,313,808          47,558              1,736,580       

Interest receivable 1,403,579         300,171            -                      112,996          

Utility receivable 8,544,171         2,938,313          -                      845,338          

24,100,745       8,882,393          384,423            2,900,121       

Less: allowance for un-

collectible amounts (774,062)          (215,128)           -                      (56,387)          

Total 23,326,683$     8,667,265$        384,423$          2,843,734$      
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(4) Notes Receivable – Primary Government  
 
The notes receivable in the Governmental Funds amounted to $72,583,580 at June 30, 2019. 
$51,574,231 consisted of primarily Housing and Community Development loans, which arose 
from the sale of land to project developers and other agencies, and the provision of loan 
assistance under the City’s affordable housing programs, subject to approved redevelopment 
plans. $21,009,349 consisted of loans that the former redevelopment agency made to assist 
the development of affordable rental housing projects and the purchase of homes by 
homebuyers.  These loans are secured by trust deeds and were funded with redevelopment 
low-moderate income housing set-aside funds.  These notes have various terms, including 
maturities ranging from 5 to 45 years and interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 11%. Due to the 
uncertainty of their collectability at June 30, 2019, the City has recorded an allowance for 
uncollectible long-term receivables of $72,583,580. 
 
In January 2009, Light and Power utilized $80 million of Reserves for Stranded Investment 
and in return received Subordinated Notes totaled $70 million from Intermountain Power 
Agency (IPA) to defease some of IPA’s outstanding debt service requirement for 
Intermountain Power Project (IPP) bonds. These notes have various maturity dates, and the 
proceeds, when mature, will be used to stabilize future energy costs. The balance of the notes 
as of June 30, 2019 is $20,644,167. 
 

(5) Due From and To Other Funds 
 

Current interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 

General 

Due to other funds Fund Total

Non-Major Governmental Funds 3,679,334$          3,679,334$          

Internal Service Funds 4,473,393           4,473,393           

    Total 8,152,727$          8,152,727$          

Due from other 

funds

 
 

The above balances are due to short term payable between funds and negative cash balances at 
the end of the fiscal year. 
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(6) Advances To and From Other Funds 
 

Primary Government 
 
 Long-term interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 
 

Light

General and Power

Advances from other funds Fund Fund Total

General Fund -$                  440,000$      440,000$        

Offstreet Parking Fund 1,087,067        -                 1,087,067        

    Total 1,087,067$      440,000$      1,527,067$      

Advances to other funds

 
 

                    Outstanding at 
   June 30, 2019  

General Fund 
The General Fund has an agreement with Old Pasadena Parking providing for 
advance of funds to finance parking activities. The annual reimbursements, 
including interest, to the General Fund is $1,087,067 for FY 2019. $1,087,067 
 

  
 Light and Power 

On May 14, 2012, City Council authorized a loan from Power Fund of 
Pasadena Water and Power (PWP) to Public Works Department (Public 
Works) and appropriated it to the FY 2013 Capital Improvement Program 
Budget for the repair and/or replacement of existing street lighting systems 
CIP Project.  Public Works agreed to repay the loan to PWP in ten equal 
annual installments of $110,000 each on January 31 of each year starting on 
January 31, 2014 and ending on January 31, 2023. 440,000 

 
 
 Total advances between City funds $1,527,067 
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(6) Advances To and From Other Funds (Continued) 
 

Discretely Presented Component Units 
 
Long-term interfund advance balances between the City and discretely presented component 
units as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 

Advances To Component Units Advances From the City Amount

General Fund Pasadena Center Operating Company 384,748$        
 

 
 Outstanding at 
   June 30, 2019  
 General Fund 

On September 17, 1999, PCOC borrowed $1,400,000 from the City to fund 
necessary maintenance of the Conference Center. The loan carries an interest 
rate of 5%. PCOC anticipates that the loan repayment will be from the share 
of Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT).  The agreement provides for a schedule 
of repayment payable within a 40-year period.        $   54,410 

 
On September 11 and October 25, 2011, PCOC borrowed a total of 
$1,500,000 from the City to fund a new ice rink. The loan carries an interest 
rate of 2.5%. PCOC anticipates that the loan repayment will be from ice 
skating net income by the 5th year of operation of the new rink over a 10-year 
period.       330,338 

 
 Total advances between City and discretely presented component units       $ 384,748 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Balance of page intentionally left blank) 
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(7) Capital Assets 
 
 Primary Government 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows: 
 

 Balance at Transfers and Prior Period  Balance at 

Governmental activities  June 30, 2018  Additions  Deletions Adjustments Adjustment  June 30, 2019

Depreciable assets:

  Buildings and improvements 291,055,523$      147,609$        (4,518,663)$        12,354,727$        -$                  299,039,196$      

  Machinery and equipment 74,304,000          3,098,791       (5,474,269)         403,065              -                    72,331,587          

  Infrastructure 338,339,910        -                    -                       7,582,438            -                    345,922,348        

Total cost of depreciable assets 703,699,433        3,246,400       (9,992,932)         20,340,230          -                    717,293,131        

Less accumulated depreciation:

  Buildings and improvements (131,652,579)       (6,451,974)      2,514,597           -                        -                    (135,589,956)       

  Machinery and equipment (45,300,301)         (5,358,409)      5,170,886           -                        -                    (45,487,824)         

  Infrastructure (146,085,708)       (6,360,195)      -                       -                        -                    (152,445,903)       

Total accumulated depreciation (323,038,588)       (18,170,578)    7,685,483           -                        -                    (333,523,683)       

Net depreciable assets 380,660,845        (14,924,178)    (2,307,449)         20,340,230          -                    383,769,448        

Capital assets not depreciated:

  Land 87,403,123          451,851          -                       -                        -                    87,854,974          

  Construction in progress 37,168,126          20,263,454      (388,275)            (20,340,230)         (259,969)        36,443,106          

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 124,571,249        20,715,305      (388,275)            (20,340,230)         (259,969)        124,298,080        

Capital assets, net 505,232,094$      5,791,127$      (2,695,724)$        -$                       (259,969)$       508,067,528$      

 
 
During the year, the Governmental activities received proceeds of $34,847 from the disposal of capital 
assets and incurred a loss on disposal of $2,534,921. 
 
Depreciation expense was charged in the following functions and activities in the statement of activities: 
 

General government 5,694,919$      

Public safety 1,392,532        

Transportation 1,236,301        

Health 117,298          

Culture and leisure 1,375,266        

Community development 5,836,253        

Computing and Communication 1,241,059        

Building Maintenance 1,329              

Fleet Maintenance 1,274,080        

Fleet Repair and Maintenance 1,541              

18,170,578$    
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(7) Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
 Primary Government (Continued) 
 

 Balance at Transfers and Rounding  Balance at 

Business-type activities  June 30, 2018  Additions  Deletions Adjustments Adjustments  June 30, 2019

Depreciable assets:

  Buildings and improvements 142,989,398$      -$                   (1,275,397)$          804,600$         -$                  142,518,601$           

  Utility lines, machinery and

    equipment 1,124,523,397     279,418           (12,750,536)          33,760,665       -                    1,145,812,944          

Total cost of depreciable assets 1,267,512,795     279,418           (14,025,933)          34,565,265       -                    1,288,331,545          

Less accumulated depreciation:

  Buildings and improvements (59,178,412)        (3,926,544)       1,001,753             -                     -                    (62,103,203)             

  Utility lines, machinery and -                            

    equipment (488,496,217)       (38,782,418)     11,847,892            -                     (7)                  (515,430,750)           

Total accumulated depreciation (547,674,629)       (42,708,962)     12,849,645            -                     (7)                  (577,533,953)           

Net depreciable assets 719,838,166        (42,429,544)     (1,176,288)            34,565,265       (7)                  710,797,592            

Capital assets not depreciated:

  Land 14,676,119          -                     -                          -                     7                   14,676,126              

  Construction in progress 32,727,844          42,124,738       -                          (34,565,265)     -                    40,287,317              

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 47,403,963          42,124,738       -                          (34,565,265)     7                   54,963,443              

Capital assets, net 767,242,129$      (304,806)$        (1,176,288)$          -$                   -$                  765,761,035$           
 

 
During the year, the Business-type activities received proceeds of $160,705 from the disposal of capital 
assets and incurred a loss on disposal of $1,113,785. 
 
Depreciation expense was charged in the following functions in the statement of activities: 
 
 

Electric 31,701,792$    

Water 8,378,869        

Refuse 750,168          

Parking 1,774,050        

Telecommunication 104,083          

42,708,962$    
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(7) Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
 Primary Government (Continued) 
 
A portion of the interest expense for bonds issued were capitalized and included as part of the costs of 
capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 

Interest Expense Amount Capitalized

Electric 9,537,737$             160,935$                

Water 3,036,734               -                            

Parking 750,694                  -                            

13,325,165$            160,935$                
 

 
 
 Fiduciary Funds – Private Purpose Trust Fund 
 

 Balance at  Balance at 

Fiduciary Funds  June 30, 2018  Additions  Deletions  June 30, 2019

Depreciable assets:

  Buildings and improvements -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                    

  Machinery and equipment -                      -                    -                    -                      

Total cost of depreciable assets -                      -                    -                    -                      

Less accumulated depreciation:

  Buildings and improvements -                      -                    -                    -                      

  Machinery and equipment -                      -                    -                    -                      

Total accumulated depreciation -                      -                    -                    -                      

Net depreciable assets -                      -                    -                    -                      

Capital assets not depreciated:

  Land 1,129,261          -                    (915,000)        214,261            

Total cost of non-depreciable assets 1,129,261          -                    (915,000)        214,261            

Capital assets, net 1,129,261$        -$                  (915,000)$       214,261$          
 

 
Depreciation expense in the private purpose trust funds were $0 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
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(8) Deferred Inflows and Outflows 
 
 Primary Government 
 

Deferred Outflows on the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position consists of the following 
at June 30, 2019: 

Govermental Activities Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

2015A Refunding COP Deferred Charges 4,830,996$              -$                    (246,689)$         4,584,307$        

Equipment Lease 6,051                     -                      (6,051)               -                              

GASB68 Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date 37,516,670              40,270,576       (37,516,670)       40,270,576        

GASB68 Net Difference on Pension Plan Investments 14,067,361              3,157,254         (14,096,115)       3,128,500          

GASB68 Change of Assumptions 58,125,209              37,519,225       (58,125,209)       37,519,225        

GASB68 Difference in Experience -                            1,458,034         -                      1,458,034          

GASB75 Change of Assumptions -                            2,326,722         -                      2,326,722          

FPRS Net Difference on Pension Plan Investments 2,028,000               -                      (1,113,000)         915,000            

116,574,287$          84,731,811$      (111,103,734)$   90,202,364$         
 

 
Business-Type Activities Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

1998 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges 542,318$               -$                  (108,464)$          433,854$          

2002 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges 878,986                -                    (292,996)           585,990            

2008 Electric Bonds Deferred Charges 1,015,977              -                    (53,471)             962,506            

2003 Water Bonds Deferred Charges 330,805                -                    (66,160)             264,645            

GASB68 Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date 8,364,342              8,411,385        (8,364,342)         8,411,385         

GASB68 Net Difference on Pension Plan Investments 2,432,470              147,650          (2,432,470)         147,650            

GASB68 Change of Assumptions 12,959,017            8,655,009        (12,959,017)       8,655,009         

GASB68 Difference in Experience -                          304,542          -                       304,542            

GASB75 Change of Assumptions -                          604,948          -                       604,948            

26,523,915$          18,123,534$    (24,276,920)$     20,370,529$         
 

 
Deferred Inflows on the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets consists of the following at 
June 30, 2019: 

 
Governmental Activities

Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

Derivative Instruments 259,997$          -$                  (259,997)$       -$                   
Accumulated increase in fair value of interest rate 79,877              -                    (79,877)          -                    

GASB68 Change of Assumptions 3,429,062         5,410,286        (3,429,062)      5,410,286        

GASB68 Difference in Experience 22,884,591        14,572,075      (22,884,594)    14,572,072      

GASB75 Change of Assumptions 634,833            -                    (156,842)         477,991          

GASB75 Differences between projected and actual 

  earnings on OPEB plan investments 1,409               20,800            -                    22,209            

27,289,769$      20,003,161$    (26,810,372)$   20,482,558$    
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(8) Deferred Inflows and Outflows (Continued) 
 
 Primary Government (Continued) 

 

Business-Type Activities Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2018 Increase Decrease June 30, 2019

GASB68 Change of Assumptions 3,124,247$       3,538,070$   (3,124,247)$   3,538,070$      

GASB68 Difference in Experience 2,523,659         787,408       (2,523,659)    787,408          

GASB75 Change of Assumptions 155,657           -                 (40,778)         114,879          

GASB75 Differences between projected and actual 

  earnings on OPEB plan investments 345                 5,408           -                  5,753              

5,803,908$       4,330,886$   (5,688,684)$   4,446,110$         
 

 
Deferred Inflows on the Governmental Funds consists of the following at June 30, 2019: 

 
Project

Management

General Capital Non-Major Total

Fund Project Governmental Governmental

Revenues not "available" 674,488$                 2,460,812$              3,005,370$              6,140,670$              

674,488$                 2,460,812$              3,005,370$              6,140,670$                 
 

 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33 revenue recognition requirements, the following 
revenues have been deferred because they were not available at year end:  $674,488 of park 
projects, $2,460,812 of capital improvement projects, $48,498 of Public Safety grants, $1,229,870 
of Health grants, $204,266 of Transportation services, and $1,522,736 of Housing grants. 
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(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities 
 

Primary Government 
 
Changes in long-term debt and other liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

 
 

Balance at Balance at Due Within More Than
Governmental Activities: June 30, 2018  Additions       Reductions  June 30, 2019 One Year  One Year  

Notes payable

Notes from Direct Borrowings

  (Rose Bowl) 502,803$       -$                 (15,498)$         487,305$         15,824$        471,481$         

Section 108 5,400,000       -                  (300,000)         5,100,000        300,000        4,800,000        

Total Notes Payable 5,902,803       -                  (315,498)         5,587,305        315,824        5,271,481        

Pension bonds:

2015 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds 119,460,000   -                  -                    119,460,000    710,000        118,750,000    

Bond Premiums/(Discount) (2,047,975)     -                  76,087            (1,971,888)       -                  (1,971,888)       

Total Pension Bonds 117,412,025   -                  76,087            117,488,112    710,000        116,778,112    

Certificates of participation:

2008 COP Series B Refunding 2004 A&B 3,179,159       -                  (3,179,159)      -                    -                  -                    

2015 COP Series A Refunding 2008 COP 54,555,000     -                  (1,810,000)      52,745,000      1,895,000      50,850,000      

Bond Premiums/(Discount) 5,233,216       -                  (342,296)         4,890,920        -                  4,890,920        

Total certificates of participation 62,967,375     -                  (5,331,455)      57,635,920      1,895,000      55,740,920      

Capitalized lease obligations 1,844,179       -                  (1,011,494)      832,685          344,707        487,978          

 Total governmental activity long term  

obligations 188,126,382   -                  (6,582,360)      181,544,022    3,265,531      178,278,491    

Other:

Compensated absences 10,978,104     10,107,215    (9,903,604)      11,181,715      9,903,604      1,278,111        

Insurance claims payable 48,690,648     8,338,456      (11,586,630)     45,442,474      17,580,821    27,861,653      

Total governmental activity long-term 

liabilities 247,795,134$ 18,445,671$  (28,072,594)$   238,168,211$   30,749,956$  207,418,255$   
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(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 

Primary Government (Continued) 
 
 

Due In 

Balance at Balance at Due Within More Than
Business-Type Activities: June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 One Year  One Year  

Note from Direct Borrowings 296,462$         -$                (195,238)$       101,224$           101,224$        -$                    

Revenue bonds:

2009 Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 19,020,000      -                  (3,135,000)       15,885,000        3,260,000       12,625,000       

2010A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 14,435,000      -                  (4,625,000)       9,810,000          4,810,000       5,000,000         

2010A Water Revenue Bonds (Taxable Build 

America) 25,425,000      -                  -                    25,425,000        -                   25,425,000       

2010B Water Revenue Bonds (Tax-Exempt) 1,445,000        -                  (705,000)         740,000            740,000         -                     

2011A Water Revenue Bonds (Refunding 

Bonds) 18,765,000      -                  (2,490,000)       16,275,000        1,210,000       15,065,000       

2012A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 5,490,000        -                  (535,000)         4,955,000          550,000         4,405,000         

2013A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 77,560,000      -                  (1,575,000)       75,985,000        1,650,000       74,335,000       

2016A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 116,960,000    -                  (2,605,000)       114,355,000      2,735,000       111,620,000     

2017A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 14,120,000      -                  (500,000)         13,620,000        525,000         13,095,000       

Total Water and Power 293,220,000    -                  (16,170,000)     277,050,000      15,480,000     261,570,000     

2008 Paseo Colorado Taxable Revenue Bonds 23,400,000      -                  (700,000)         22,700,000        700,000         22,000,000       

Bond Premiums/(Discounts) 32,295,418      -                  (1,749,651)       30,545,767        -                   30,545,767       

Total revenue bonds 348,915,418    -                  (18,619,651)     330,295,767      16,180,000     314,115,767     

Certificates of participation:

2008 COP Series B Refunding 2004A&B 105,841          -                  (105,841)         -                      -                   -                     

Total certificates of participation 105,841          -                  (105,841)         -                      -                   -                     

Capitalized lease obligations -                    3,252,694      -                    3,252,694          428,526         2,824,168         

Total business-type activity long-term 

liabilities 349,317,721$   3,252,694$    (18,920,730)$   333,649,685$     16,709,750$   316,939,935$    
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(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 

Discretely Presented Component Units  
 
Changes in discretely presented component unit’s long-term debt and other liabilities for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 
 

Additions Due In

Balance at Including Balance at Due Within More Than
Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 2018   Accretion     Reductions June 30, 2019 One Year  One Year  

Certificates of participation:

2006 COP (CONFERENCE CENTER PROJECT 22,228,007$         1,061,691$         (4,405,000)$        18,884,698$     4,815,000$       14,069,698$      

2008 Refunding COP Series 2008A (Conference 

Center Project) 134,720,000         -                       -                        134,720,000     -                      134,720,000      

Total Certificates of Participation 156,948,007         1,061,691           (4,405,000)          153,604,698     4,815,000         148,789,698      

Revenue Bonds:

2010A Revenue Bonds-Tax Exempt 20,947,737           1,299,506           -                        22,247,243       180,000            22,067,243        

2010B Revenue Bonds-Taxable Build America 

Bonds 106,660,000         -                       -                        106,660,000     -                      106,660,000      

2010C Revenue Bonds-Taxable 2,440,000             -                       (1,200,000)          1,240,000         1,240,000         -                      

2010D Revenue Bonds-Taxable Recovery 7,400,000             -                       -                        7,400,000         -                      7,400,000         

2013A Revenue Bonds-Refunding-Tax Exempt 34,900,000           -                       (34,900,000)        -                     -                      -                      

2013B Revenue Bonds-Refunding-Taxable Fixed 

Rate 13,525,000           -                       (13,525,000)        -                     -                      -                      

2016A Revenue Bonds-Partial Refunding 2010A 

Bonds 21,865,000           -                       -                        21,865,000       -                      21,865,000        

Bond Premiums/(Discounts) 4,814,272             -                       (550,202)            4,264,070         -                      4,264,070         

2018A Revenue Bonds-Refunding / Tax Exempt 

Fixed Rate -                         30,585,000         -                        30,585,000       -                      30,585,000        

2018B Revenue Bonds-Taxable -                         12,515,000         (85,000)              12,430,000       1,370,000         11,060,000        

2018AB Bond Premium/(Discount) -                         4,482,703           (104,021)            4,378,682         -                      4,378,682         

Total Revenue Bonds (Rose Bowl Renovation) 212,552,009         48,882,209         (50,364,223)        211,069,995     2,790,000         208,279,995      

Energy Conservation Loan 1,328,807             -                       (271,733)            1,057,074         282,474            774,600            

Conference Center Loan 159,283               -                       (104,872)            54,411             54,411             -                      

Skating Rink Loan 489,489               -                       (159,151)            330,338           163,130            167,208            

Golf Equipment Finance 776,530               -                       (51,769)              724,761           51,769             672,992            

Compensated absences 327,760               212,386             (224,144)            316,002           202,608            113,394            

Total discretely presented component units long-

term liabilities 372,581,885$       50,156,286$       (55,580,892)$      367,157,279$   8,359,392$       358,797,887$    
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
 Fiduciary Funds – Private Purpose Trust Fund 
 
 

Due In

Balance at   Balance at Due Within More Than

Successor Agency to Pasadena Community   June 30, 2018  Additions       Reductions    June 30, 2019 One Year  One Year  

Development Commission (PCDC):

Tax allocation bonds:

2006 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (Fair Oaks) 830,000$             -$                     (195,000)$             635,000$            200,000$         435,000$         

              Total tax allocation bonds 830,000               -                       (195,000)               635,000              200,000           435,000           

Advances Payable-City 2,671,092            -                       (2,671,092)            -                         -                      -                      

Total Successor Agency to PCDC long-term liabilities 3,501,092$          -$                     (2,866,092)$          635,000$            200,000$         435,000$         

 
 
Governmental Activities: 
 

Final
Principal 

Issue Original Coupon Payment Outstanding at
Date Purpose Amount Interest Rate Date June 30, 2019

Detail of Long-Term Debts

Governmental Activities:

Notes payable

Notes Payable-RBOC 1/15/2013 a 575,642$             2.10% 1/7/2043 487,305$                

Notes Payable-Section 108 10/29/2015 n 6,000,000            variable 8/1/2035 5,100,000               
                Total Notes Payable 5,587,305$           

Pension bonds:

2015 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds 5/5/2015 b 119,460,000$       2.577% to 4.796% 5/1/2045 119,460,000$          
                Total Pension Bonds 119,460,000$       

Certificates of Participation:

2015 COP Series A Refunding 2008 COP 12/2/2015 o 55,350,000$        3.0% to 5.0% 2/1/2038 52,745,000$           

                Total Certificates of Participation 52,745,000$         

Capitalized Lease Obligations

2001 Property Lease 965 N Fair Oaks 12/27/2000 c 4,000,000$          variable 12/27/2020 95,569$                 

2011 Equipment Lease-ARTS Buses 12/23/2011 d 2,072,805            3.560% 1/15/2022 701,772                 

2015 Equipment Lease-South Lake Parking Meter 9/23/2015 d 112,924              2.470% 9/23/2020 35,344                   

                Total Capitalized Lease Obligations 832,685$              
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Business-Type Activities: 
 

Final

Principal 

Issue Original Coupon Payment Outstanding at

Date Purpose Amount Interest Rate Date June 30, 2019

Detail of Long-Term Debts

Business-Type Activities:

Notes payable

Notes Payable-Marriott Parking Garage 8/18/1999 e 2,600,000       4.950% 12/19/2019 101,224$                  

Total Notes Payable 101,224$                

Revenue bonds:

2008 Paseo Colorado Taxable Revenue Bonds 9/17/2008 i 28,800,000      variable 6/1/2038 22,700,000$              

2009 Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds 11/24/2009 j 40,655,000      4.0% to 5.0% 8/1/2024 15,885,000               

2010A Electric Revenue/Refunding Bonds 8/3/2010 l 36,320,000      2.0% to 4.0% 6/1/2021 9,810,000                 

2010A Water Revenue Bonds (Taxable Build 

America)

12/23/2010 g 25,425,000      6.0% to 7.3% 6/1/2040

25,425,000               

2010B Water Revenue Bonds (Tax-Exempt) 12/23/2010 g 4,575,000       3.0% to 5.0% 6/1/2020 740,000                    

2011A Water Revenue/Refunding Bonds 12/20/2011 k 29,770,000      3.0% to 5.0% 6/1/2033 16,275,000               

2012A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 10/4/2012 l 11,780,000      1.0% to 4.0% 6/1/2022 4,955,000                 

2013A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 12/3/2013 f, m 80,485,000      4.25% to 5.0% 6/1/2043 75,985,000               

2016A Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds 11/7/2016 p 119,440,000    4.0% to 5.0% 6/1/2041 114,355,000              

2017A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 3/13/2017 q 15,395,000      5.00% 6/1/2036 13,620,000               

                   Total Revenue Bonds 299,750,000$         

Capitalized Lease Obligations:

  2019 Equipment Lease-Parking System 4/1/2019 d 3,252,694       2.670% 4/1/2026 3,252,694$               

                  Total Capitalized Lease Obligations 3,252,694$             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Balance of page intentionally left blank) 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Business-Type Activities (Continued): 
 

Final

Principal 

Issue Original Coupon Payment Outstanding at

Date Purpose Amount Interest Rate Date June 30, 2019

Detail of Long-Term Debts

Discretely Presented Component Units

Certificates of Participation

2006 COP (Conference Center Project) 8/23/2006 CC1 27,139,972         3.85% to 4.81% 2/1/2023 18,884,698$               

2008 Refunding COP, Series 2008A  

(Conference Center Project)

4/15/2008 CC2 134,720,000       variable 2/1/2035

134,720,000               

Total Certificates of Participation (PCOC) 153,604,698$          

Revenue Bonds

2010A Revenue Bonds-Tax Exempt 11/18/2010 RB1 25,220,000         4.0% to 5.0% 3/1/2021 1,835,000$                 

2010A Revenue Bonds-Tax Exempt Capital 

Appreciation

11/18/2010 RB1 11,558,265         6.43% to 6.52% 3/1/2033

20,412,243                 

2010B Revenue Bonds-Taxable Build America 

Bonds

11/18/2010 RB1 106,660,000       6.998% to 7.148% 3/1/2043

106,660,000               

2010C Revenue Bonds-Taxable 11/18/2010 RB1 5,005,000          2.935% to 4.924% 3/1/2020 1,240,000                   

2010D Revenue Bonds-Taxable Recovery Zone 

Economic Development

11/18/2010 RB1 7,400,000          7.148% 3/1/2043

7,400,000                   

2016A Revenue Bonds-Partial Refunding 2010A 

Bonds

10/5/2016 RB3 21,865,000         5.000% 4/1/2027

21,865,000                 

2018A Revenue Bonds-(Refunding 2013A Tax 

Exempt)

12/6/2018 RB2 30,585,000         5.000% 12/1/2042

30,585,000                 

2018B Revenue Bonds-(Refunding 2013B 

Taxable)

12/6/2018 RB2 12,515,000         2.604% to 3.575% 12/1/2027

12,430,000                 

Total Revenue Bonds (RBOC) 202,427,243$          
 

 
 

 
 
 

(Balance of page intentionally left blank) 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 

Final

Principal 

Issue Original Coupon Payment Outstanding at

Date Purpose Amount Interest Rate Date June 30, 2019

Fiduciary Funds

Successor Agency to Pasadena Community

Development Commission (PCDC):

Tax Allocation bonds:

  2006 Tax Allocation Refunding Bond (Fair 5/17/2006 T1 2,470,000       3.8% to 4.9% 7/1/2021 635,000$                     

  Oaks)

              Total tax allocation bonds 635,000$                     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Balance of page intentionally left blank) 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 

a Refund 2006 Revenue Bonds

b Fire and Police Retirement

c Land Acquisition

d Equipment Purchases, assets purchased collateralizes debt

e Marriott Parking Improvements

f GT5 Improvements

g Water System Capital Improvements

h Modernization power warehouse

i Refund 2000 Paseo Bonds

j Refund partial 1998 Electric Bonds

k Refund partial 2003 Water Bonds

l Refund partial 2002/2003 Electric Bonds

m Refund 2002 Electric Bonds and Capital Improvements to the Electric System

n Section 108 Note for Robinson Park Improvements

o Partially refund 2008 Certificates of Participation

p Refund 2008 Electric Bonds, repay Line of Credit and Capital Improvements to the Electric System

q Refund 2007 Water Bonds

CC1 Conference Center Improvements

CC2 Refund 2006B Certificates of Participation

RB1 Rose Bowl Stadium Renovation

RB2 Refund 2013 Rose Bowl Revenue Bonds

RB3 Partial refund 2010A Rose Bowl Revenue Bonds

T1 Fair Oaks Redevelopment Project & Public Improvement Program

Purpose of Debt:

 
 
 
 
 
 

(Balance of page intentionally left blank) 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
 The annual requirements to amortize as of June 30, 2019, are as follows: 
 
 Governmental Activities: 
 

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 315,824$           133,408$           710,000$              5,429,959$             1,895,000$           2,399,650$        

2021 316,156             149,329             890,000                5,411,662               1,995,000             2,304,900          

2022 316,495             141,310             1,075,000             5,386,529               2,090,000             2,205,150          

2023 316,842             133,288             1,340,000             5,353,483               2,195,000             2,100,650          

2024 317,195             125,187             1,380,000             5,311,072               2,310,000             1,990,900          

2025-2029 1,591,547          497,119             11,635,000           25,503,690             13,375,000           8,104,250          

2030-2034 1,601,572          257,202             18,000,000           22,882,903             13,285,000           4,520,775          

2035-2039 712,694             38,427               23,335,000           18,311,948             15,600,000           1,590,400          

2040-2044 98,980               5,247                 49,695,000           10,007,538             -                            -                     

2045 -                         -                         11,400,000           541,500                  -                            -                     

Total Payment 5,587,305$        1,480,517$        119,460,000$       104,140,284$         52,745,000$         25,216,675$      

Pension BondsNotes Payable Certificates of Participation

 
 

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest

2020 344,707$        23,721$          

2021 245,753          15,032            

2022 242,225          6,486              

Total Payment 832,685$        45,239$          

Capitalized Lease

 
 
 Business-Type Activities 
 

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 101,224$          2,547$         16,180,000$          13,906,000$          428,526$            84,005$           

2021 -                       -                   16,930,000            13,188,415            440,044              72,487             

2022 -                       -                   17,555,000            12,491,800            451,872              60,660             

2023 -                       -                   11,010,000            11,685,710            464,017              48,514             

2024 -                       -                   11,320,000            11,182,590            476,489              36,042             

2025-2029 -                       -                   53,260,000            48,532,295            991,746              33,320             

2030-2034 -                       -                   62,195,000            35,199,035            -                          -                       

2035-2039 -                       -                   60,815,000            19,707,780            -                          -                       

2040-2044 -                       -                   40,900,000            6,834,380              -                          -                       

2045-2046 -                       -                   9,585,000              578,800                 -                          -                       

Total Payment 101,224$          2,547$         299,750,000$        173,306,805$        3,252,694$         335,028$         

Capitalized LeaseNotes Payable Revenue Bonds
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
 Fiduciary Funds 
 

Year Ending

June 30 Principal Interest

2020 200,000$           26,010$           

2021 210,000             16,118             

2022 225,000             5,513               

Total Payment 635,000$           47,641$           

Tax Allocation Bonds

 
 
2019 Equipment Lease-Parking System 

  
On April 1, 2019, the City entered into a Master Lease Purchase Agreement in the amount of 
$3,252,694 with JP Morgan Chase Bank for the financing of Parking System with ALPR 
Equipment, which is then leased to the City of Pasadena. Lease payments will be budgeted in the 
Off-Street Parking Department. Principal and interest of $256,266 are due semi-annually. The rate 
of interest is 2.67%. Principal installments range from $212,842 to $252,890 commencing October 
1, 2019 and ending April 1, 2026. 
 
Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 

 
The Government's outstanding notes from direct borrowings related to government activities of  
$487,305 is payable to Rose Bowl Operating Company resulting from the refunding of  revenue 
bonds activities in 2013 and does not have any special provision. 
 

The City’s outstanding Notes Payables-Section 108 relates to government activities are payable 
from the annual allocation of Community Development Block Grant Funds. 

 

In regards to the 2015A Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs), the debt Service payments are secured 
by revenue received by the General Fund. 
 
In case of a default, the following is the course of action: 
The Trustee will, by written notice to the City and the Paying Agent, declare immediately due and 

payable the principal and Accreted Value of the accrued interest on all Outstanding Bonds of such 

Series, whereupon the same become immediately due and payable with any further action or notice. 
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CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 (Continued) 

 
In regards to the 2015A Certificates of Participation, the City’s outstanding bonds from public 
offerings related to government activities are payable from and secured by revenue received by the 
City.  In case of the City’s default, the following is the course of action: 
 

The Authority or its assignee, in addition to all other rights and remedies it may have at law, will 

have the option to do the following: 

 

(1) To terminate the Sublease in the manner provided in the Sublease on account of default by the 

City, and to retake possession of the Lease Property.  In the event of such termination, the City 

agrees to surrender immediately possession of the Lease Property, without let or hindrance, 

and to pay the Authority or its assignee all damages recoverable at law that the Authority or 

its assignee may incur by reason of default by the City, including, without limitation, any costs, 

loss or damage whatsoever arising out of, in connection with, or incident to any such retaking 

possession of the Lease Property.  Neither notice to pay rent nor to deliver up possession of 

the Lease Property given pursuant to law nor any proceeding in unlawful detainer, or 

otherwise, brought by the Authority or its assignee for the purpose of obtaining possession of 

the Leased Property nor the appointment of a receiver upon initiative of the Authority or its 

assignee to protect the Authority’s or its assignee’s interest under the Sublease shall of itself 

operate to terminate the Sublease, and no termination of the Sublease on account of default by 

the City shall be or become effective by operation of law or acts of the parties hereto, unless 

and until the Authority or its assignee shall have given written notice to the City of the election 

on the part of the Authority or its assignee to terminate the Sublease. 

 

(2) Without terminating the Sublease, (i) to collect each installment of rent as it becomes due and 

enforce any other term or provision of the Sublease to be kept or performed by the City and/or 

(ii) to exercise any and all rights to retake possession of the Lease Property.  In the event the 

corporation or its assignee does not elect to terminate the Sublease in the manner described in 

subparagraph (1) above, the City will remain liable and agrees to keep or perform all 

covenants and conditions contained in the Sublease to be kept or performed by the City and, to 

pay the rent to the end of the term of the Sublease or, in the event that the Lease Property is re-

let, to pay any deficiency in the rent that results therefrom; and further agrees to pay said rent 

and/or the payment of rent under the Sublease (without acceleration), notwithstanding the fact 

that the Authority or its assignee may have received in previous years or may receive thereafter 

in subsequent years rental in excess of the rental specified in the Sublease and notwithstanding 

any retaking of possession of the Leased Property by the Authority of its assignee or suit in 

unlawful detainer, or otherwise, brought by the Authority or its assignee for the purpose of 

obtaining possession of the Leased Property.  Should the Authority or its assignee elect to 

retake possession of the Lease Property as provided in the Sublease, the City irrevocably  
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 (Continued) 
 

appoints the Authority or it assignee as the agent and attorney-in-fact of the City to re-let the 

Lease Property, or any items thereof, from time to time, either in the Authority’s or its 

assignee’s name or otherwise, upon such terms and conditions and for such use and period as 

the Authority or its assignee may deem advisable and the City indemnifies and agrees to save 

harmless the Authority or its assignee from any costs, loss or damage whatsoever arising out 

of, in connection with, or incident to any retaking of possession of and re-letting of the Lease 

Property by the Authority or its assignee or its duly authorized agents in accordance with the 

provisions contained in the Sublease.  The City agrees that the terms of the Sublease constitute 

full and sufficient notice of the right of the Authority or its assignee to re-let the Lease Property 

in the event of such reentry without effecting a surrender of the Sublease, and further agrees 

that no acts of the Authority or its assignee in effecting such re-letting with constitute a 

surrender of termination of the Sublease irrespective of the use or the terms for which such re-

letting is made or the terms and conditions of such re-letting, or otherwise, but that on the 

contrary, in the event of such default by the City the right to terminate the Sublease will vest in 

the Authority or its assignee to be effected in the sole and exclusive manner described in 

subparagraph (1) above.  The City further waives the right to rental obtained by the Authority 

or its assignee in excess of the rental specified in the Sublease and conveys and release such 

excess to the Authority or its assignee as compensation to the Authority or its assignee for its 

services in re-letting the Lease Property or any items thereof.  The City further agrees to pay 

the Authority or its assignee the cost of any alterations or repairs to the Lease Property or any 

items thereof necessary to place the Leased Property or any items thereof in conditions for re-

letting immediately upon notice of the City of the completion and installation of such alterations 

or repairs. 

 

The City waives any and all claims for damages caused or which may be caused by the 

Authority or its assignee in taking possession of the Leased Property as provided in the 

Sublease and all claims for the damages that may result from the destruction of or injury to the 

Leased Property and all claims for damages to or loss of any property belonging to the City, 

or any other person, that may be on about the Leased Property. 

 

The Authority expressly waives the right to receive any amount from the City pursuant to 

Section 1951.2(a)(3) of the California Civil Code. 

 

In addition to any default resulting from breach by the City of any agreement, condition, 

covenant or term of the Sublease, if( 1) the City’s interest in the Sublease or any part thereof 

be assigned, sublet or transferred without the written consent of the Authority (except as 

otherwise permitted by the Sublease), either voluntarily or by operation of law; or (2) the City 

or any assignee will file any petition or institute any proceeding under any act or acts, state of 

federal, dealing with or relating to the subject of bankruptcy or insolvency or under any 

amendment of such act or acts, either as a bankrupt or as an insolvent or as a debtor or in any 

similar capacity, wherein or whereby the City asks or seeks or prays to be adjudicated a  
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Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 (Continued) 
 

bankrupt, or is to be discharged from any or all of its debts or obligations, or offers to its 

creditors to effect a composition or extension of time to pay its debts, or asks, seeks or prays 

for reorganization or to effect a plan of reorganization or for a readjustment of its debts or for 

any other similar relief, or if the City will make a general or any assignment for the benefit of 

its creditors; or (3) the City will abandon or vacate the Leased Property or any portion thereof 

(except as permitted by the Sublease); then in each and every such case the City will be deemed 

to be default under the Sublease. 

 

Neither the City nor the Authority will be default in the performance of any of its obligations 

under the Sublease (except for the obligation to make Base Rental Payments pursuant to the 

Sublease) unless and until it will have failed to perform such obligation within 30 days after 

notice by the City or the Authority, as the case may be, to the other party properly specifying 

wherein it has failed to perform such obligation. 

 
The Government’s outstanding notes from direct borrowing from City National Bank related to 
business-type activities of $101,224 restrict the use of funds only to Parking funds and contain a 
provision that in an event of default, the entire unpaid principal and interest will become due and 
payable. 
 
The City’s outstanding Lease Revenue bonds from public offering related to business-type parking 
activities (Paseo Colorado Revenue Bonds, 2008 Series) are payable from and secured by revenue 
received by the City.  In regards to the 2008 Paseo Colorado Revenue Bonds, the following is the 
remedy upon default: 
 
The Authority, in addition to all other rights and remedies it may have at law, shall have the option 

to do any of the following: 

 

(a) Terminate the Lease in the manner provided in the Lease on account of default by the City, 

notwithstanding ay re-entry or re-letting of the Lease Premises and remove all persons in 

possession thereof and all personal property whosesoever situation upon the Leased Premises 

and place such personal property in storage in any warehouse or other suitable place in the 

County of Los Angeles, State of California, provided that the Leased Premises continue to be 

operated and maintained as a public off-street vehicular parking facility, subject to the 

provisions of the Development Agreements.  In the event of such termination, the City agrees 

to surrender immediately possession of the Lease Premises, without let or hindrance, and to 

pay the Authority all damages recoverable at law that the Authority may incur by reason of 

default by the City, including, without limitation, any costs, loss or damage whatsoever arising 

out of, in connection with, or its duly authorized agents in accordance with the provisions 

contained in the Lease.  Neither notice to pay rent or to deliver up possession of the Lease  
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(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 (Continued) 
 

Premises given pursuant to law nor any entry or re-entry by the Authority nor any proceeding 

in unlawful detainer, or otherwise, brought by the Authority for the purpose of effecting such 

re-entry or obtaining possession of the Leased Premises nor the appointment of a receiver upon 

initiative of the Authority to protect the Authority interest under the Lease, will of itself operate 

to terminate the Lease , and no termination of the Lease on account of default by the City will 

be or become effective by operation of law or acts of the parties to the Lease, or otherwise, 

unless and until the Authority gives written notice to the City and the Commission of the 

election on the part of the Authority to terminate the Lease.  The City agrees that no surrender 

of the Lease Premises or of the remainder of the term of the Lease or any termination of the 

Lease will be valid in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever unless stated or accepted by 

the Authority by such written notice. 

 

(b) Without termination the Lease, (i) to collect each installment of rent as it becomes due and 

enforce any other term or provision of the Lease to be kept or performed by the City or (ii) to 

exercise any and all rights of entry and re-entry upon the Leased Premises as provided.  In the 

event the Authority does not elect to terminate the Lease in the manner provided for in the 

Lease, the City remains liable and agrees to keep or perform all covenants and conditions in 

the Lease contained to be kept or performed by the City and , if the Leased Premises are not 

re-let, to pay the full amount of the rent annually to the end of the term of the Lease or, in the 

event that the Leased Premises are re-let, to pay any deficiency in rent that results therefrom; 

and further agrees to pay said rent and/or rent deficiency punctually at the same time and in 

the same manner as provided in the Lease for the payment of rent under the Lease (without 

acceleration), notwithstanding the fact that the Authority may have received in previous years 

or may receive thereafter in subsequent years rental in excess of the rental specified in the 

Lease and notwithstanding any entry or re-entry by the Authority or suit in unlawful detainer, 

or otherwise, brought by the Authority for the purpose of effecting such re=entry or obtaining 

possession of the Lease Premises.  Should the Authority elect to re-enter as provided in the 

Lease, the City irrevocably appoints the Authority as the agent and attorney-in-fact of the City 

to re-let the Leased Premises, or any part thereof, from time to time, either in the Authority’s 

name or otherwise, for use as public off-street vehicular parking facility upon such terms and 

conditions and for such period as the authority may deem advisable and, subject to the 

provisions of the Development Agreement, to remove all persons in possession thereof and all 

personal property whosesoever situated in and upon the Leased Premises and to place such 

personal property in storage in any warehouse or other suitable place in the County of Los 

Angeles, State of California, for the account of and at the expense of the City, and the City 

exempts and agrees to save harmless the Authority from any costs, loss or damage whatsoever 

arising out of, in connection with, or incident to any such re-entry upon and re-letting of the 

Lease Premises and removal storage of such property by the Authority or its duly authorized 

agents in accordance with the provisions contained in the Lease; provided, however, that any 
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Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 (Continued) 
 

such re-entry upon and re-letting of the Leased Premises its subject to the provisions of the 

Development Agreements.  The City agrees that the terms of the Lease constitute full and 

sufficient notice of the right of the Authority to re-let the Leased Premises as provided in the 

Lease in the event of such re-entry without effecting a surrender of the Lease, and further 

agrees that no acts of the Authority in effecting such re-letting will constitute a surrender or 

termination of the Lease irrespective of the use or the term for which such  re-letting or 

otherwise, but that, on the contrary, in the event of such default by the City the right to terminate 

the Lease will vest in the Authority to be effected in the sole and exclusive manner provided for 

in the Lease.  The City further waivers the right to any rental obtained by  the Authority in 

excess of the rental specified in the Lease and conveys and releases such excess to the Authority 

as compensation to the Authority for its services in re-letting the Leased Premises or any part 

thereof. The City further agrees to pay the Authority the cost of any alterations or additions to 

the Lease Premises or any part thereof necessary to place the Leased Premises or any part 

thereof in conditions for re-letting immediately upon notice to the City of the completion and 

installation of such additions or alterations. 

 

The City waives any and all claims for damages caused or which may be caused by the 

Authority in re-entering and taking possession of the Lease Premises as provided in the Lease 

and all claims for damages that may result from the destruction of or injury to the Leased 

Premises and all claims for damages to or loss of any property belonging to the City, or any 

other person, that may be in or upon the Lease Premises. 

 

Each and all of the remedies given to the Authority under the Lease or by any law enacted are 

cumulative and the exercise of one right or remedy will not impair the right of the Authority to 

any or all other remedies, provided, however, that the Lease Premises continue to be operated 

and maintained as public off-street vehicular parking facility, subject to the provisions of the 

Development Agreement.  The term “re-let” or “re-letting” as used in the Lease include, but 

not be limited to re-letting by means of the operation of the Leased Premises by the Authority.  

If any statute or rule of law validly limits the remedies given to the Authority under the Lease, 

the Authority nevertheless will be entitled to whatever remedies are allowable under any statute 

or rule of law. 

 

In the event the Authority prevails in any action brought to enforce any of the terms and 

provisions of the Lease, the City agrees to pay a reasonable amount as and for attorney’s fees 

incurred by the Authority to enforce any of the remedies available to the Authority under the 

Lease, whether or not a lawsuit has been filed and whether or not any lawsuit culminates in a 

judgment. 

 

 
 
 

92



CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 

Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 (Continued) 
 

 (c)  If (1) the City’s interest in the Lease or any part thereof be assigned or transferred without the 

written consent of the Authority, wither voluntarily or by operation of law or otherwise, or if 

(2) any proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or any federal or state 

bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law or any law providing for the appointment of a receiver, 

liquidator, trustee or similar official of the City or all or substantially all of its assets is 

instituted by or with the consent of the City, or it instituted with its consent and is not 

permanently stayed or dismissed within sixty days, or it the City offers to the City’s’ creditors 

to effect a composition or extension of time to pay the City’s debts, or asks, seeks or prays for 

reorganization or to effect a plan of reorganization or for readjustment of the City’s debts, or 

if the City makes a general assignment or any assignment for the benefit of the City’s creditors, 

or if (3) the City will abandon or vacate any part of the Leased Premises, then the City will be 

deemed to be default under the Lease. 

 

In regards to, the City’s outstanding bonds from public offerings related to business-type, activities 
(2010AB, 2011A and 2017A Water Revenue Bonds and 2009, 2010A, 2012A, 2013A and 2016A 
Electric Revenue Bonds) are payable from and secured by revenue received by the Utilities (Water 
and Power Funds). 
 
In relations to the Electric Revenue Bonds course of action in case of the City’s default, the 
following is the course of action: 
 
Upon the concurrence and continuation of and Event of Default the Bond Owners’ Committee or, 

if there is none, the Owners of 25% in aggregate Bond Obligation of Bonds then Outstanding may, 

by written notice to the City, declare the entire unpaid principal of the Bonds due and payable and 

, thereupon the entire unpaid principal of the Bonds will forthwith become due and payable.  Upon 

any such declaration the City will forthwith pay to the Owners of the Bonds the entire unpaid 

principal of, premium, pledged for such purpose.  If at any time after such a declaration and before 

the entry of a final judgement or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account of 

such default or before the completion of the enforcement of any other remedy under the Fiscal 

Agent Agreement, the principal of all Bonds that have matured or been called for redemption 

pursuant to any sinking fund provision and all arrears of interest have been paid and any other 

Events of Default which may have occurred have been remedied, then the Bonds Owners’ 

Committee or, if there is none, the Owners of 25% in aggregate Bonds Obligation of Bond then  

 

Outstanding may, by written notice of the City, rescind of annual such declaration and its 

consequences.  No such rescission or annulment will extend to or affect any subsequent default or 

impair any right consequent thereon. 
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In relations to the Water Revenue Bonds course of action in case of the City’s default, the following 
is the course of action: 
 
Application of Pledged Revenues and Other Funds After Default; Acceleration. If an Event of 

Default shall occur and be continuing, the City shall immediately transfer to the Trustee all Pledged 

Revenues held by it and received thereafter and the Trustee shall apply all Pledged Revenues and 

any other funds then held or thereafter received by the Trustee under any of the provisions of the 

Indenture (except as otherwise provided in the Indenture) as follows and in the following order: 

 

(1) To the payment of any expenses necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to protect the interests of 

the Owners of the Bonds and Parity Debt, including the costs and expenses of the Trustee and the 

Bondholders in declaring such Event of Default, and payment of reasonable fees and expenses of 

the Trustee (including reasonable fees and disbursements of its counsel and other agents) incurred 

in and about the performance of its powers and duties under the Indenture; 

 

(2) To the payment of the whole amount of Bond Obligation then due on the Bonds and Parity Debt 

(upon presentation of the Bonds and Parity Debt to be paid, and stamping thereon of the payment 

if only partially paid, or surrender thereof if fully paid) subject to the provisions of the Indenture, 

with interest on such Bond Obligation at the rate or rates of interest borne by the respective Bonds 

and Parity Debt, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then 

due and the unpaid principal or Redemption Price of any Bonds and Parity Debt which shall have 

become due, whether at maturity or by call for redemption, in the order of their due dates, with 

interest on the overdue Bond Obligation and Parity Debt at the rate borne by the respective Bonds 

and Parity Debt, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds and 

Parity Debt due on any date, together with such interest, then to the payment thereof ratably, 

according to the amounts of principal or interest or Accreted Value (plus accrued interest) due on 

such date to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and 

 

(3) To the extent not paid pursuant to clause (1) or (2) above, to any Credit Provider any amounts then 

due and owing. 

 

In each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default, the Owners of not 

less than a majority in aggregate amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds at the time Outstanding 

shall be entitled, upon notice in writing to the City, to declare the principal of all of the Bonds then 

Outstanding, and the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable immediately, and upon any 

such declaration the same shall become and shall be immediately due and payable, anything in the 

Indenture or in the Bonds contained to the contrary notwithstanding. 

 

 

 

 

94



CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(9) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities (Continued) 
 

Disclosure Related to Long-Term Debt Under GASB 88 (Continued) 
 

This provision, however, is subject to the condition that if, at any time after the principal of the 

Bonds shall have been so declared due and payable, the City shall pay to or shall deposit with the 

Trustee a sum sufficient to pay all principal on such Bonds matured prior to such declaration and 

all matured installments of interest (if any) upon all the Bonds, and the reasonable fees and 

expenses of the Trustee, and any and all other defaults known to the Trustee (other than in the 

payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds due and payable solely by reason of such 

declaration) shall have been made good or cured to the satisfaction of the Trustee, or provision 

deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall have been made therefor, then, and in every such case, 

the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds at the 

time Outstanding, by written notice to the City and to the Trustee, may, on behalf of the Owners of 

all the Bonds, rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences; but no such rescission and 

annulment shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default, or shall impair or exhaust any 

right or power consequent thereon. 

 
In regards to the Discretely Presented Component Units as it relates to the Rose Bowl Lease 
Revenue Bonds series, 2010AB, 2016A, and 2018AB in case of default, the following is the course 
of action: 
 

(a)  Upon the happening of any of the events & default, then it shall be lawful for the 

Authority or its assignee, subject to the terms of the Lease, with the consent of the Majority Holder, 

to (i) exercise any and all remedies available or granted to it under the Sublease or pursuant to 

law, to the extent not inconsistent with the remedies granted under the Sublease or (ii) by 

mandamus or other suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity to enforce the Authority’s or its 

assignee’s rights against the City and to compel the City to perform and carry out its duties and 

obligations under the law and its covenants and agreements with the City as provided in the 

Sublease.  Upon the breach of any agreement, condition, covenant or term contained in the 

Sublease required to be observed or performed by the City, the Authority or its assignee may not 

exercise any rights of entry upon or repossession of the Leased Property. In the event of such 

default, the Authority or its assignee must thereafter maintain the Sublease in full force and effect 

and may only recover rent and other monetary charges as they become due, all without terminating 

the City’s right to possession of the Leased Property, regardless of whether or not the City has 

abandoned the Leased Property; THIS SHALL BE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY 

AVAILABLE AGAINST THE CITY UNDER THE SUBLEASE OR OTHERWISE. THE 

AUTHORITY SHALL HAVE NO RIGHT UPON AN EVENT OF DEFAULT UNDER THE 

SUBLEASE BY THE CITY TO ACCELERATE THE RENTAL PAYMENTS. TERMINATE THE 

SUBLEASE OR RE-ENER THE LEASED PROPERYT. 
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Primary Government 

 

Governmental activities 

 
Objective of the swaps: The City of Pasadena has entered into two separate floating to fixed interest 
rate swaps in order to lower the borrowing cost by accessing interest rate markets otherwise 
unattractive with traditional fixed rate debt structures. The greater liquidity and flexibility of the 
swap market has offered the City significant cost savings opportunities in both swaps the City has 
engaged in. 
 
Rose Bowl Refinancing and Improvement Project - SWAP No.1 
 
On February 23, 2006, the Pasadena Public Financing Authority entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement with Deutsche Bank related to the $47,300,000 2006 Variable Rate Demand Lease 
Revenue Bonds (Rose Bowl Refinancing and Improvement Project). The objective was to 
effectively change the City’s variable interest rate to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.285%. Under the 
terms of swap, the City pays the counterparty the fixed rate of 3.285% and receives a floating rate 
equal to 65% of the one month LIBOR rate.    
 
Objective and Terms of Hedging Derivative Instruments 
 
The following table displays the objective and terms of the City’s hedging derivative instrument 
outstanding at June 30, 2019, along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty. 
 
On November 14, 2018, the City terminated the interest rate Swap with Deutsche Bank for 
$739,500, which 20% was apply to the City’s portion of Swap in amount of $147,900. 
 
 

Cash Flow Notational Effective Maturity Counterparty

Hedge Objective Amount Date Date Term Credit Rating

Pay-fixed interest 

rate swaps

Hedge of changes 

in cash flows on 

the 2006 Bonds

$3,340,000 2/23/2006 Terminated

 Pays 3.285%; 

receive 65% of 

LIBOR index 

 A3/AA 

 
On May 3, 2011, the City restructured the 2006 Bonds in order to take advantage of a more 
attractive interest rate adjustment mode than the 2006 previously had. As a result, pursuant to 
GASB 53, the hedging relationship terminated and the value of the swap was re-characterized as a 
deferred amount upon a refunding and a new hedging relationship was established between the 
remaining on-market swap (the 2011 On-Market Swap) and the restructured 2006 bonds.  
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Primary Government, (Continued) 

 

Governmental activities, (Continued) 

 
On January 15, 2013, a portion of the restructured 2006 Bonds were refunded by the City’s Lease 
Revenue Bonds (Rose Bowl), Series 2013A (the 2013A Bonds).  As a result, pursuant to GASB 
Statement No. 53, a portion of the hedging relationship established in 2011 terminated and the 
value of that portion of the 2011 On-Market Swap was re-characterized as a deferred amount upon 
a refunding and a new hedging relationship was established between the remaining on-market swap 
(the 2013 On-Market Swap) and the 2013A Bonds.   

 
On May 1, 2018, the remaining portion of the restructured 2006 Bonds were paid off. As a result, 
pursuant to GASB Statement No. 53, the remaining portion of the hedging relationship established 
in 2011 was terminated and the value of the remaining portion of the 2011 On-Market Swap was 
re-characterized as a deferred amount and a new hedging relationship was established between the 
remaining on-market swap (the 2018 On-Market Swap) and the 2013A Bonds.   
 
 The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 
2019, classified by type, and the change in fair value of such derivative instruments for the year 
then ended are as follows: 
 
 

Cash Flow

Hedge Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional

Pay-fixed interest 

rate swaps
Deferred outflow  $               79,877 Asset  $                       -  $                      - 

    Changes in Fair Value  Fair Value at June 30, 2019

 
 
The fair value of the interest rate swap was estimated using the zero-coupon method.  This method 
calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current 
forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These 
payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for 
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps.   
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Business-type activities 
 
On July 1, 2009, the Pasadena Water Power Department (PWP) adopted Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative 

Instruments (GASB 53). As a result, the PWP recorded congestion revenue rights (CRRs) 
associated with power transmission within the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) 
as derivative instruments on the statement of net position in FY 2010. The accounting treatment of 
the derivative instruments was changed in FY 2011 according to a supplement to 2010-2011 
Comprehensive Implementation Guide issued by GASB in December 2010. The CRRs are 
considered normal purchase or normal sales and are not required to be recorded and deferred the 
fair value of the CRRs. The transactions recorded in FY 2010 were reversed in FY 2011. 

 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

 
Rose Bowl Operating Company (RBOC) 
 
Derivative Instrument Liability 
 
The fair value balance and notional amount of the derivative instrument outstanding at June 30, 
2019 and the changes in fair value of the derivative instrument for the year then ended are as 
follows: 
 
On November 14, 2018, the City terminated the interest rate Swap with Deutsche Bank for 
$739,500, which 80% was apply to the Rose Bowl Operating Company portion of Swap in amount 
of $591,600. 
 

Cash Flow

Hedge Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional

Pay-fixed interest 

rate swaps
Deferred inflow  $             319,506 Asset  $                       -  $                      - 

    Changes in Fair Value  Fair Value at June 30, 2019

 
 
The fair value of the interest rate swap was estimated using the zero-coupon method.  This method 
calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current 
forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These 
payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for 
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps. 
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Discretely Presented Component Units, (Continued) 
 
Rose Bowl Operating Company (RBOC), (Continued) 

 
Objective and Terms of Hedging Derivative Instruments 

 
The following table displays the objective and terms of RBOC’s hedging derivative instrument 
outstanding at June 30, 2019, along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty.  
 

Cash Flow Notational Effective Maturity Counterparty

Hedge Objective Amount Date Date Term Credit Rating

Pay-fixed interest 

rate swaps

Hedge of changes 

in cash flows on 

the 2006 Bonds

 $   13,360,000 2/23/2006 Terminated

 Pays 3.285%; 

receive 65% of 

LIBOR index 

 Baa2/A 

 
 
On May 3, 2011, the City entered into a new agreement to take advantage of a more advantageous 
interest rate adjustment mode than the 2006 previously had. As a result, the former derivative 
instrument terminated and the new instrument has off-market terms.  As a result, an up-front 
payment was received. The up-front payment is reported as a borrowing. The borrowing is 
amortized over the life of the swap and amortizes using the effective interest method for the life of 
the swap with adjustments to interest expense during each fiscal year. The original balance of the 
borrowing was $2,619,308. As of the year ending June 30, 2019, the balance was $0. 

 
On January 15, 2013, a portion of the restructured 2006 Bonds were refunded by the City’s Lease 
Revenue Bonds (Rose Bowl), Series 2013A (the 2013A Bonds).  As a result, pursuant to GASB 
Statement No. 53, a portion of the hedging relationship established in 2011 terminated and the 
value of that portion of the 2011 On-Market Swap was re-characterized as a deferred amount upon 
a refunding and a new hedging relationship was established between the remaining on-market swap 
(the 2013 On-Market Swap) and the 2013A Bonds.   
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Pasadena Center Operating Company (PCOC) 
 
Conference Center Variable Rate Demand Refunding Certificates of Participation – SWAP No. 2 
 
On September 18, 2006, the City entered into an interest rate swap agreement with DEPFA Bank 
related to the $135,500,000 Conference Center Auction Rate Certificates Series 2006B. The 
objective was to effectively change the City’s Variable interest rate to a synthetic fixed rate of 
3.536%. Under the terms of the swap, the City pays the counterparty the fixed rate of 3.536% and 
receives a floating rate equal to 64% of the one month LIBOR rate. The swap has a notional amount 
of $133,000,000 representing a hedge ratio of 98.7% and declines according to the schedule set 
forth in the contract until the final principal payment on the certificates in 2034. 
 
Objective and Terms of Hedging Derivative Instruments 
 
The following table displays the objective and terms of PCOC’s hedging derivative instruments 
outstanding at June 30, 2018, along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty: 
 

Cash Flow Notational Effective Maturity Counterparty

Hedge Objective Amount Date Date Term Credit Rating

Pay-fixed interest 

rate swaps

Hedge of changes 

in cash flows on 

the 2008A COP's

 $     133,000,000 4/1/2011 2/1/2034

 Pays 3.536%; 

receive 64% of 

LIBOR index 

 Aa2/AA- 

 
 
Note in 2011, due to its declining credit ratings, DEPFA was replaced by RBC as the counterparty 
for the swap.  Pursuant to GASB 64, the replacement did not require any change in accounting 
treatment. 
 
On April 15, 2008, the City issued the 2008 Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2008A 
in the amount of $134,720,000. These certificates were issued to refund the City’s Certificates of 
Participation (Conference Center Project), Series 2006B and finance the cost of execution of the 
2008A Certificates of Participation backed by a letter of credit from Bank of America. The final 
maturity on the 2008A COP’s was extended by one year to 2035 in order to reduce the reserve 
requirement and consequently, reduce the size of the issue by approximately $800,000. The 
refunded certificates are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the 
component unit’s column of the statement of net position and recorded as a deferred amount upon 
a refunding. 
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Pasadena Center Operating Company (PCOC), (Continued) 
 
Objective and Terms of Hedging Derivative Instruments, (Continued) 

 
During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, PCOC entered into a new agreement to take advantage 
of a more advantageous interest rate adjustment mode than the 2008 Series Bonds previously had.  
As a result, the former derivative instrument terminated and the new instrument has off-market 
terms.  As a result, an up-front payment was received.  The up-front payment is reported as a 
borrowing.  The borrowing is amortized over the life of the swap and amortizes using the effective 
interest method for the life of the swap with adjustments to interest expense during each fiscal year.  
The original balance of the borrowing was $8,935,612.84.  As of the year ended June 30, 2019, the 
balance was $5,448,336. 

 

Beginning Accrued Ending 

June 30 Balance Interest Payment Balance

2020 5,448,336$      238,252$  (646,380)$    5,040,208$      

2021 5,040,208        219,387    (646,380)      4,613,215       

2022 4,613,215        199,651    (646,380)      4,166,486       

2023 4,166,486        179,003    (646,380)      3,699,109       

2024 3,699,109        157,461    (635,404)      3,221,166       

2025 3,221,166        136,068    (601,344)      2,755,890       

2026 2,755,890        115,332    (563,760)      2,307,462       

2027 2,307,462        95,454      (522,409)      1,880,507       

2028 1,880,507        76,649      (477,171)      1,479,985       

2029 1,479,985        59,154      (427,721)      1,111,418       

2030 1,111,418        43,226      (373,774)      780,870          

2031 780,870          29,157      (315,009)      495,018          

2032 495,018          17,258      (251,140)      261,136          

2033 261,136          7,877       (181,805)      87,208            

2034 87,208            1,487       (88,695)        -                    
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(10) Derivative Instruments, (Continued) 

 
Discretely Presented Component Units, (Continued) 
 
Pasadena Center Operating Company (PCOC), (Continued) 

 
The Company categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established 
by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used 
to measure the fair value of the asset or liability.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs. Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 
 
The Company has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019: 
 

 Level       

Measurements by fair value level 1 2 3

Derivative instrument liability 23,223,868$        -$             23,223,868$    -$             

 
Derivative Instrument Liability 
 
The fair value balance and notional amount of the derivative instrument outstanding at June 30, 
2019, classified by type, and the changes in fair value of such derivative instruments for the year 
then ended are as follows:   
 

 
 
The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated using the zero-coupon method.  This 
method calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the 
current forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These 
payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for 
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps.   
 
Credit risk: PCOC is exposed to credit risk on hedging derivative instruments to the extent that 
value of the swap is position from PCOC’s perspective.  The aggregate fair value of hedging 
derivative instruments was negative as of June 30, 2019 and therefore PCOC had no credit risk 
exposure.   

 
Interest rate risk:  The purpose of the swap is to eliminate interest rate risk on the associated hedged 
bonds and therefore the swap, in combination with related bonds does not create interest rate risk 
for PCOC. 
 

Cash Flow

Hedge Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional

Pay-fixed interest 

rate swaps
Deferred Outflow  $          7,450,612 Liability  $       23,223,868  $      133,000,000 

    Changes in Fair Value  Fair Value at June 30, 2019
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(10) Derivative Instruments, (Continued) 

 
Discretely Presented Component Units, (Continued) 
 
Pasadena Center Operating Company (PCOC), (Continued) 

 

Basis risk: PCOC is exposed to basis risk on its pay-fixed interest rate swap because the variable-
rate payments received by PCOC on these hedging derivative instruments are based on a rate or 
index other than interest rates PCOC pays on its hedged variable-rate debt, which is typically 
remarketed every 7 days. As of June 30, 2019, the weighted-average interest rate on the PCOC’s 
hedged variable-rate debt is 2.48588%, while 64 percent of LIBOR is 1.59096%. 

 
Termination risk: PCOC or its counterparty may terminate a derivative instrument if the other party 
fails to perform under the terms of the contract. The derivative contract uses the International Swap 
Dealers Association Master Agreement which includes standard termination events such as failure 
to pay and bankruptcy. In addition, PCOC may optionally terminate the agreement on any date.  If 
at the time of a termination, PCOC may be required to make a termination payment to its 
counterparty.  If PCOC had to terminate the Swap for any reason on June 30, 2019, the maximum 
exposure/loss would have been $30,041,421. 
 
Rollover risk: PCOC is exposed to rollover risk on hedging derivative instruments that are hedges 
of debt that mature or may be terminated prior to the maturity of the hedged debt. When these 
hedging derivative instruments terminate prior to the maturity of the related debt, PCOC will be re-
exposed to the risks being hedged by the hedging derivative instrument. 
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(11) Fund Balance and Net Position 
 

Fund balances, Governmental Funds 
 
On the Governmental Balance Sheet, the fund balances are reported in the aggregate in the 
classifications defined by GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental 
Fund Type Definitions. Fund balances by classification for the year ended June 30, 2019, are as 
follows: 
 

Project General Non-Major

Management Debt Housing Governmental

General Fund Capital Project Service Successor Funds

Fund Balances

Nonspendable:

Prepaid and Other Assets 117,758$          -$                 -$                 -$                     44,166$            

Advances to Other Funds 1,087,067         -                   -                   -                       -                      

Advances to Component Units 384,748            -                   -                   -                       -                      

Permanent Fund Principal -                      -                   -                   -                       1,434,131         

Property Held for Resale -                      -                   -                   -                       -                      

Total Nonspendable 1,589,573         -                   -                   -                       1,478,297         

Restricted for:

Air Quality Improvement -                      -                   -                   -                       228,602            

Notes Receivable -                      -                   -                   21,009,349         51,574,231        

     Allowance for Uncollectible Long-        

       Term -                      -                   -                   (21,009,349)       (51,574,231)      

City Charter/Capital Projects -                      723,775         -                   -                       1,984,084         

Debt Service -                      -                   3,336,841      -                       8,594,812         

Donated Funds -                      -                   -                   -                       2,258,741         

Housing and Community Development

Housing Funds -                      -                   -                   -                       5,898,234         

CDBG -                      -                   -                   -                       

Inclusionary Housing Trust -                      -                   -                   -                       9,504,735         

Rental Assistance Programs -                      -                   -                   -                       1,878,173         

Other Purpose -                      -                   -                   5,987,510          558,498            

Public Safety

Asset Forfeiture -                      -                   -                   -                       1,534,536         

Public Safety Augmentation -                      -                   -                   -                       1,211,794         

Section 108 HUD Loan Security for 450,508            

Robinson Park Rehab 400,000            -                   -                   -                       -                      

Secion 115 Trust 11,230,935        -                   -                   -                       -                      

Transportation -                      -                   -                   -                       23,424,201        

Total Restricted 11,630,935$      723,775$       3,336,841$     5,987,510$         57,526,918$       
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(11) Fund Balance and Net Position (Continued) 
 

Fund balances, Governmental Funds (Continued) 
 

Project General Non-Major

Management Debt Housing Governmental

General Fund Capital Project Service Successor Funds

Fund Balances, continued

Total from previous page 13,220,508$      723,775$       3,336,841$        5,987,510$        59,005,215$          

Committed to:

Building Plan Check and Permit Services -                      -                   -                      -                      11,718,814            

Building Services - General Plan Maintenance

Fee and Technology Fee -                      -                   -                      -                      4,757,641              

Capital Projects -                      -                      -                      29,857,462            

Emergency Contingency 38,081,100        -                   -                      -                      -                          

Opereating Reserve 12,693,700        -                   -                      -                      -                          

Libraries -                      -                   -                      -                      7,081,512              

Pasadena Center Capital Improvement Trust -                      -                   -                      -                      60,749                  

Parking -                      -                   -                      -                      4,069,132              

Sewer Construction and Maintenance -                      -                   -                      -                      10,491,420            

Underground Utilities -                      -                   -                      -                      52,964,551            

Total Committed 50,774,800        -                   -                      -                      121,001,281          

Assigned to:

General Government 9,688,438         -                   -                      -                      -                          

Health 3,486,052         

Public Safety 48,398              -                   -                      -                      -                          

Transportation 144,884            -                   -                      -                      -                          

Capital Projects 1,731,262         -                   -                      -                      -                          

Total Assigned 15,099,034        -                   -                      -                      -                          

Unassigned: 19,605,899        -                   -                      -                      (3,574,156)             

Total Fund Balance 98,700,241$      723,775$       3,336,841$        5,987,510$        176,432,340$         
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(11) Fund Balance and Net Position (Continued) 
 

Net Position 
 

On the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position, the Net Position is reported in one of three 
classifications: Net Investment in Capital Assets, Restricted, or Unrestricted. Net position by 
classification as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:  
 
 

Component Units

Total Aggregate

Governmental Business-Type Primary Component

Activities Activities Government Units

Net Investment in Capital Assets 448,253,628$          434,358,345$           882,611,973$           (11,150,660)$               

Restricted:

Expendable:

Public Safety 3,196,838                -                                3,196,838                 -                                   

Cultural and Leisure -                              -                                -                                -                                   

Capital Projects 2,707,859                -                                2,707,859                 2,986,026                     

Community Development 17,303,643              -                                17,303,643               -                                   

Contributions -                              18,858,763               18,858,763               -                                   

Air quality improvement 228,602                   -                                228,602                    -                                   

Donated funds 2,258,741                -                                2,258,741                 -                                   

Debt Service 11,931,653              29,507,377               41,439,030               -                                   

Stranded Investments (notes 12 

and 19) -                              89,251,747               89,251,747               -                                   

Transportation 23,424,201              -                                23,424,201               -                                   

Trust and loans 11,630,935              -                                11,630,935               -                                   

Other Purposes 6,546,008                5,187,779                 11,733,787               -                                   

Unrestricted: (352,141,292)          230,707,107             (121,434,185)            19,173,646                   

Total Net Position 175,340,816$          807,871,118$           983,211,934$           11,009,012$                 

Primary Government
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(12) Restricted Net Position – Stranded Investments 
 
In 1998, the City Council established a Reserve for Stranded Investment (Reserve) and imposed a 
Stranded Investment Surcharge (SIS) on all electric utility bills. The purpose of the Reserve for 
Stranded Investment was to create a fund to mitigate the potential impacts of open access to the 
energy market for Water and Power Department (PWP) customers and offset short and long term 
stranded energy costs associated with the Intermountain Power Project (IPP) and Palo Verde 
Nuclear Generating Station (PVNGS).  Several sources of funding for the Reserve were identified 
in addition to the SIS and funding continued until June 30, 2002. At that time, it was determined 
that the Reserve was fully funded with no additional contributions required. Collection of the SIS 
was discontinued and excess funds returned to PWP customers. All funds deposited into the 
Reserve, including investment earnings, were recorded as income during the year collected or 
realized. 
 
In November 2006, the City Council approved the Stranded Investment Reserve Utilization Plan 
(Plan). In January 2009, in accordance with the Plan and a previously approved Prepayment 
Agreement (Agreement), PWP utilized approximately $80.0 million of the reserve funds to 
complete an economic defeasance of selected bonds for IPP. As authorized in the Agreement, the 
Intermountain Power Agency (IPA) issued approximately $70.0 million of subordinated notes to 
PWP, the payments for which will offset a portion of the debt service associated with the 
economically defeased bonds, thereby reducing the cost of energy purchased from IPP. 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the Stranded Investment Reserve balance was $89.3 million. The details of 
the additions and subtractions, in the Reserve, that occurred during FY 2019 are shown below: 
 

Restricted Cash and Investment

Beginning balance 69,216,320$            

Interest earnings 1,404,584                

Market gain (loss) 2,290,188                

Transfer of SIS reserve (7,000,000)              

Restricted cash and investment ending balance 65,911,092$            

IPA Subordinated Notes

Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2018 Reduction June 30, 2019

Notes Receivable 24,997,500$         (4,353,333)$            20,644,167$            

Premium 3,370,610             (674,122)                 2,696,488                

Total IPA Subordinated Notes 28,368,110$         (5,027,455)$            23,340,655$            

Total Restricted Cash and IPA Subordinated Notes 89,251,747$            
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(13) Accumulated Fund Deficits 
 
The following funds reported accumulated deficits in their respective fund balances/net position at 
June 30, 2019: 
 

Due to 

Operations

Due to GASB 68 

Implementation

Due to GASB 75 

Implementation

Total 

Accumulated 

Deficit

Governmental Activities:

Special Revenue Funds:

Health (3,552,491)$     -$                            -$                            (3,552,491)$     

Internal Service Funds:

Computing and Communications Service 8,848,677        (13,517,611)            (2,356,548)              (7,025,482)       

Benefits (9,661,177)       (63,740,044)            (213,388)                 (73,614,609)     

Workers Compensation (27,472,883)     (7,530,800)              (252,735)                 (35,256,418)     

General Liability (5,195,326)       (391,783)                 (39,347)                   (5,626,456)       

Printing Services (3,790,009)       (884,131)                 (216,630)                 (4,890,770)       

311 Call Center 361,093           (546,967)                 (216,630)                 (402,504)          
 

 
Management’s plans for resolution of the accumulated fund deficits are as follows: 

 
Health 

 
The Health Fund was established to account for all grants received for the provision of health 
services which are restricted by grant award agreements and state health realignment funding 
requirements. The Pasadena Public Health Department remains committed to offering programs 
necessary for positive public health outcomes while maintaining systems and controls needed for 
a financially sustainable operation. In FY 2019, the department ended the year with a significant 
shortfall largely attributable to delayed state reimbursements, program performance challenges, and 
lower than expected health realignment funding. To address any continued fiscal challenges, the 
Department: is working with the State of California to expedite the processing of grant 
reimbursement requests; has implemented financial performance and contract compliance tools 
with the goal of improving program performance; and is closely monitoring health realignment 
revenue payments to more accurately evaluate potential funding adjustments. Going forward, the 
Department will resolve projected imbalances by way of operational changes to facilitate a 
reduction in the outstanding negative fund balance according to the plan approved by City Council 
in June 2017. 
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(13) Accumulated Fund Deficits, (Continued) 
 
Benefits Fund 
 
The Benefits Fund was established to account for employee compensated absences, retirement, and 
health benefits. A large deficit is likely to be shown in this fund at the end of each fiscal year, as 
the largest component represents a portion of the unfunded pension liability and a second largest 
portion of the deficit reflects the total liability from accrued leave balances.  Each year, the city 
reviews the rates charged to Departments to adjust to an appropriate recovery level and keep the 
deficit as low as possible or reduce it. The overall FY 2019 fund balance deficit increased by $6.3 
million.  This is primarily attributable to revenue of $32.3 million exceeded by expenses of $38.6 
million.  The expense increases are attributable to increased pension contributions, benefits, and 
compensation.  To better manage the short-term costs and long-term liabilities associated with 
pensions and OPEB, the City set aside $10.5 million into a Section 115 pension trust and $2 million 
into a Section 115 OPEB trust in FY 2018.   
 

Workers’ Compensation 
 
The City has established a Workers’ Compensation Fund to provide benefits for potential claim 
and cost expenditures for workers’ compensation claims against the City. In addition to any monies 
held in this Fund, the City makes an annual appropriation based upon its estimate of claim and 
expense payments during the fiscal year.  Management has reviewed the deficit, and is working to 
correct the situation through a combination of injury prevention programs, training programs, 
reduction of claim severity and claim frequency, return-to-work procedures, medical management 
and minimizing delays in all aspects of claims handling.  An increase in rates charged to the 
Departments remains a part of the annual budget process.  
 
General Liability 
 
The City has established a General Liability Fund to provide for the potential claim and cost 
expenditures for general liability claims against the City.  In addition to any monies held in this 
Fund, the City makes an annual appropriation based upon its estimate of claim and expense 
payments during the fiscal year. In FY 2019, there was a deficit primarily attributable to lower rates 
charged to Departments. Management reviewed the deficit and is implementing appropriate 
recovery measures to gradually reduce the deficit.   
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(13) Accumulated Fund Deficits, (Continued) 
 
Printing Services 
 
The Printing Fund was established to account for printing services provided to various departments 
by the Printing Services Section of the department of Finance. As Printing Services revenues are 
entirely dependent on the annual printing and design demands of the organization as a whole, 
annual revenue will fluctuate based on these requirements. In FY 2018, some departments 
transferred design responsibilities to internal staff, which had a detrimental effect on Printing 
Services ability to generate revenue in its graphic design section. FY 2019 showed a 9% increase 
of expenditure in outsourced printing and duplicating. Since outsourced jobs generate less revenue 
than in-house printed jobs, a greater number of high volume projects will generate a smaller amount 
of revenue. While revenue showed a decline of 2.5% from FY 2018 to FY 2019, this dollar amount 
is well within expected tolerances year-to-year. Actual costs of operation (revenues over expenses) 
varied 57% between FY 2018 and FY 2019 versus only 2.6% between FY 2017 and FY 2018, but 
this was due primarily to negative changes in investment earnings, increases in personnel costs and 
increases in internal service charges. Printing Service will continue to promote their services 
throughout the city through email, word of mouth and seasonal promotions. 
 
311 Call Center 
 
The City has established the 311 Call Center fund to account for the operations of the City’s central 
call center. In FY 2019, there was a deficit primarily attributable to the implementation of GASB 
68 and 75. Management reviewed the deficit and will revisit revenue sources to ensure they fully 
fund expenses related to these services. 
 
GASB Implementation 
 
In FY 2015, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions. As part of the implementation, the City has recorded certain deferred inflows/outflows 
and obligations, related to the pension benefits provided to employees, to the proprietary funds. 
This caused several of the fund’s fund balances to fall into or increase a deficit position.  
 
In FY 2018, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  As part of the implementation, the City has 
recorded certain deferred inflows/outflows and obligations, related to other postemployment 
benefits provided to employees, to the proprietary funds. This caused several of the fund’s fund 
balances to fall into or increase a deficit position.  
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(14) Pledged Revenue 
 

The City and its component units have a number of debt issuances outstanding that are 
collateralized by the pledging of certain revenues.  The amount and term of the remainder of these 
commitments are indicated in the debt service to maturity tables presented in the accompanying 
notes.  The purposes for which the proceeds of the related debt issuances were utilized are disclosed 
in the debt descriptions of the accompanying notes.  For the current year, debt service payments as 
a percentage of the pledged gross revenue (net of certain expenses where so required by the debt 
agreement) are indicated in the table below.  These percentages also approximate the relationship 
of debt service of pledged revenues for the remainder of the term of the commitments. 
 
Total pledge revenue reported for Successor Agency to Pasadena Community Development 
Commission (SA PCDC) is the net property tax revenue received to pay for all approved expenses 
(not exclusive to debt service) on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS).  Of the 
total $2,377,339 reported, $2,234,534 was received and recorded in June 2018, per Department of 
Finance guidelines, it is not to be spent until next fiscal year. 
 

Annual Amount

of Pledged Revenue Annual Debt Debt Service 

Description of (net of expenses) Service Payment as a Percentage of

Pledged Revenue  (in thousands) (in thousands) Pledged Revenue

Primary Government

Light and Power Revenues 75,346$                         23,253$                 31%

Water Revenues 16,922                          6,982                     41%

Fiduciary Funds

Tax Increment

    (SA PCDC) 2,377$                          (a) 2,902$                   122%

Note:

(a) $2,234,534 of $2,377,339 of pledge revenue was received and recorded in June 2018 to be spent 

during the period of July 2018 - December 2018.
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(15) Transfers 
 

Primary Government 
 

The following is a summary of transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2019: 
 

General Light 

Project Debt Non-Major and Non-Major Internal

General Management Service Housing Governmental Power Off Street Enterprise Service

Transfers Out Fund Fund Fund Successor Funds Fund Parking Funds Funds Total

General Fund -$                      4,353,891$        5,871,421$    A 534,219$     19,862,654$      B -$                  -$                  -$                  391,846$           31,014,031$      

Project 

Management Fund -                        -                      -                   -                -                      -                   -                    196,927         40,464              237,391            

Non-Major 

Governmental 148,060              16,732,379        C 309,838         -                6,863,965         4,194,083       2,500,000        -                   -                      30,748,325       

Light and Power 

Fund 17,608,813         D -                      -                   -                -                      -                   -                    -                   -                      17,608,813       

Water Fund 1,894,138           -                      -                   -                -                      -                   -                    -                   -                      1,894,138         

Off Street Parking 

Fund 35,000               795,087            -                   -                -                      -                   -                    -                   -                      830,087            

Non-Major 

Enterprise Funds 198,240              7,140                -                   -                -                      -                   -                    -                   329,000            534,380            

Internal Service 

Funds 106,341              1,604,851          -                   -                -                      -                   -                    -                   618,000            2,329,192         

    Total 19,990,592$        23,493,348$      6,181,259$    534,219$     26,726,619$      4,194,083$     2,500,000$      196,927$        1,379,310$        85,196,357$      

Transfers In

 
 
(A)  Transfers from the General Fund to General Debt Service Fund consist of: 
 

• $5,429,959 to pay interest for the 2015 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds 

• $441,462 for other debt service payments 
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(15) Transfers (Continued) 
 
Primary Government 
 
(B)  Transfers from the General Fund to Non-Major Governmental Funds consist of: 
 

• $7,038,853 to pay for various debt service obligations, including 2008B, 2008C and 2015A 
Refunding COPs 

• $11,532,175 to support the Library Services Fund. 

• $1,291,626 to Health, Housing and Community Development and various Transportation and 
Parking funds to support their operations. 

 
(C)  Transfers in the amount of $16,732,379 from the Non-Major Governmental Funds to the 
Project Management Fund were for various capital improvement projects. 
 
(D)  Light and Power contributed $17,608,813 to the General Fund for the payment of interest      
and principal on City bonds, municipal improvements and other purposes. 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
The following is a summary of transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2019: 
 

Transfers Out

Redevelopment

Obligation

Retirement

Transfers In Fund Total

Successor Agency Administration 241,059$               241,059$          

Successor Agency Debt Service 5,718,108              5,718,108          

    Total 5,959,167$            5,959,167$        
 

 
The Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund transferred $5,718,108 to the Successor Agency 
Debt Service Funds (SADSF) and $241,059 to the Successor Agency Administration Fund. 
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(16) Self-Insurance 
 

The City maintains self-insurance and excess insurance programs for various lines of liability 

coverage.  Liability claims are self-administered, within the self-insured retention. For the period 
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 excess liability insurance was purchased with limits of $25 million 
excess of a $3 million per occurrence self-insured retention.   Excess worker’s compensation 

insurance, with a $5,000,000 self-insured retention, was initially purchased in FY 2016 and 
renewed for FY 2018 and FY 2019.  Worker’s Compensation claims for all City workers, including 
Public Safety, Fire and Police, are administered by a Third Party Administrator, AdminSure.  The 

City maintains a few self-administered claims (with dates of Injury before 7/1/2012).  
 
Five workers’ compensation claims from prior years, when the retention was $500,000, have 

exceeded the excess level.  Nine workers’ compensation claims from prior years, when the retention 
was $250,000, have exceeded the excess level.  Three workers’ compensation claims from prior 
years, when the retention was $50,000, have exceeded the excess level.  No workers’ compensation 

injury was incurred during the past three to four fiscal years that is expected to exceed $5,000,000 
over the course of succeeding years. 
 

The Civil Division of the Department of the City Attorney/City Prosecutor, primarily using in-
house civil attorneys, controls litigated liability claims.  A claim is a demand seeking damages 
allegedly arising out of a wrongful act for which the claimant asserts the City is responsible.  During 

FY 2019, the City paid approximately $1,626,665 in loss payments. The overall total incurred is 
$3,338,447.  Liability against a public entity is mitigated by existing laws/statutes/codes, which 
provide certain immunities.   The City currently has approximately 10 active litigation cases, each 

with reserves estimated in excess of $2 million. 
 
Self-Insurance losses and administrative costs are reported in the General Liability and Workers’ 

Compensation Internal Service Funds. Losses incurred are reimbursed by departments over a period 
of time as part of an internal service assessment system.  Legal expenses are reported in the City 
Attorney Department of the General Fund.  A case reserve is established for each claim, monitored 

and adjusted by the Liability Division or the Workers’ Compensation Claims Supervisor, including 
expected litigation expenses and losses that will be paid by the City. 
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(16) Self-Insurance (Continued) 
 
Heliport and Aircraft coverage provides protection to the City for liability arising out of its public 

safety/police helicopter operations and for the City’s leadership role on the LA Impact Team.  The 
policy carries a per occurrence limit of $50,000,000 for Aircraft Hull and Liability, with an 
aggregate of $50,000,000. Coverages include hull physical damage for the scheduled aircraft, 

damage done by the City’s aircraft to someone else’s hangar, and emergency landing.  The policy 
also covers liability resulting from an error by pilot.  In addition, the policy provides coverage for 
Airport Liability with a $50,000,000 per occurrence limit.  This coverage complies with the City’s 

contract with Burbank airport.  The annual premium is apportioned between the City and LA 
Impact since the policy carries hull coverage for LA Impact aircraft.   
 

The City renewed Property Insurance on all its buildings, including Equipment Breakdown, with a 
combined total scheduled insured value of $976 million.  The policy includes coverage for fine 
arts, valuable papers, business personal property, business income and extended business income 

or rental value.  Policy limits are $250,000,000 with a deductible of $25,000 for Earthquake 
Sprinkler Leakage, $100,000 for Flood, and $25,000 for any other covered loss.  Exclusions include 
earthquake, collapse of buildings and nuclear hazard.  There have been no new claims during FY 

2019.  
 
The City’s Property: Power Plant Boiler and Machinery policy, with total insured value of 

$333,115,247. The program provides property and equipment breakdown coverage for City’s 
power plant facilities and machinery.  The policy affords coverage for risks of loss or damage, 
including boiler explosion and machinery breakdown.  Policy limits are $130,000,000 with 

deductibles of $750,000 per occurrence for all other property damage and $1,500,000 per 
occurrence for machinery breakdown of GT1, GT3, and GT5.  The City has received no new claims 
under this policy for FY 2019. 

 
In an effort to protect the City’s assets and transfer potential risk, the City also purchases the 
following insurance policies:  Medical Malpractice; Pollution Liability; Terrorism for Property and 

Business Interruption and Terrorism & Sabotage Insurance; Auto Physical Damage; Cyber Risk 
Privacy Liability; Fiduciary (purchased for and by the Fire and Police Retirement System); and 
Crime policies. 

 

115



CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(16) Self-Insurance (Continued) 
 
Pasadena Center Operating Company “PCOC” is entitled to indemnity from the City; however, 

PCOC purchases a Special Liability Insurance Program (SLIP) for general liability and 
employment practice coverage.  The City manages the PCOC claims and tenders to the insurance 
carrier third party administrator.  PCOC carries statutory workers’ compensation insurance with no 

retention.  PCOC requires licensees to provide insurance or purchase Special Events Liability 
Insurance from PCOC.  The City buys liability insurance on the parking structures at PCOC.  PCOC 
buys separate liability insurance on the ice rink.    

 
Rose Bowl Operating Company “RBOC” is entitled to indemnity from the City, and its losses are 
included in the City’s general liability self-insurance program and under the excess general liability 

policies.  RBOC carries statutory workers’ compensation insurance with no retention.  Brookside 
Golf Course is also managed through RBOC.  Major Rose Bowl tenants include the Pasadena 
Tournament of Roses, UCLA Football, and the R. G. Canning Swap Meet.  Tenants provide 

insurance, naming City of Pasadena as additional insured on their policies.  
 
The claims liability reported in the General Liability and Workers’ Compensation Internal Service 

Funds is based on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires a liability for claims 
to be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is 
probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of 

loss can be reasonably estimated, including incurred but not yet reported claims.  As of June 30, 
2019, liability claims payable amounted to $11,416,718 of which $3,554,090 is estimated to be 
paid within one year. Workers’ Compensation claims payable amounted to $34,025,756, of which 

$14,026,731 is estimated to be paid within one year. 
 
 

Beginning Fiscal Year Claim Fiscal Year

Liability in Estimates Payments Liability

2017-18 49,717,314$       12,793,847$           13,820,513$   48,690,648$  

2018-19 48,690,648        8,338,456               11,586,630     45,442,474    
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(17) Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
For the benefit of its employees, the City has adopted a deferred compensation plan in accordance 
with Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of 
a portion of their salary until termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency. As a 
result of changes under the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996, all amounts of 
compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and 
all income attributable to those amounts must be held in a trust, custodial account, or annuity 
contract for the exclusive benefit of the employee participants and their beneficiaries.  
 
The plan has a Plan Administrator and an oversight committee. The five member committee is 
comprised of three elected City employees and two members of the community appointed by the 
City Council. The oversight committee members basically monitor the plan activity, performance 
of investment options and ensure that the Plan Administrator carries out his duties and 
responsibilities. The Plan Administrator, the Director of Finance or his designee, is responsible for 
the day to day administration. The Plan Administrator has authority to sign all legal agreements 
with approved plan providers, and ensures proper amounts are withheld, immediately transferred 
to the trust, and invested in accordance with participants’ directions.  

 
 The following is a summary of the increases and decreases of amounts in the deferred compensation 

plan during the fiscal year reported in a Pension Trust Fund: 
 

2019 2018

Assets, beginning of year (market value)  $             290,919,655  $         267,174,499 

Deferrals of compensation                   15,822,757               15,313,459 

Earnings and adjustments to market value                   14,500,564               22,734,719 

Payments to eligible employees                 (19,517,759)             (14,036,143)

Plan fees                      (206,077)                  (266,879)

Assets, end of year (market value)  $             301,519,140  $         290,919,655 
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(18) Pension Plans 
 

Each full-time employee and each part-time employee (with 1,000 hours or more of service) of the 
City is a member of either the FPRS or CalPERS. Both plans are defined benefit pension plans and 
are described individually in the following notes. 

 
 Summary of Pension Plans 
 

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows 

Net Pension 

Liability

related to 

pension liability

related to 

pension liability

Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement 26,782,000$        915,000$           -$                     

CalPERS - Safety Plan 170,932,115        43,656,028        10,723,768        

CalPERS - Miscellaneous Plan 299,397,576        56,238,893        13,584,068        

Total Plans 497,111,691$      100,809,921$     24,307,836$       
 

  
Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System 

 
Plan Description 

 
FPRS is a single-employer defined benefit plan governed by a Retirement Board (Board) under 
provisions of the City Charter. The plan covers all fire and police personnel who were employed 
by the City prior to July 1, 1977, except for those who elected to transfer to CalPERS when FPRS 
closed to new member in June 2004.  In June 2004, active members were provided a one-time 
opportunity to transfer from FPRS to CalPERS as provided by an agreement with the City. Once 
transferred to CalPERS, retirement benefits for all fire and police personnel employed thereafter 
are provided under CalPERS. The plan provides retirement, death and disability benefits. Copies 
of FPRS’s annual financial report may be obtained from the Department of Finance, 100 North 
Garfield Avenue, 3rd Floor, Pasadena, California 91109.  
 
Deposits and Investment Risk 

 
The Board adopted GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures – an 
amendment to GASB Statement No. 3, effective July 1, 2004. The statement is designed to inform 
financial statement users about deposit and investment risks that could affect the ability to provide 
services and meet obligations as they become due. The disclosures required by this statement  
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(18) Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
provide information to assess common risks inherent in deposit and investment transactions. The 
statement also requires the disclosure of the following specific risks that apply to the plan’s 
investments: (1) Credit Risk and Market Value of Investments, (2) Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
and Investments, (3) Concentration of Credit Risk, (4) Interest Rate Risk, (5) Highly Sensitive 
Investments, (6) Foreign Currency Risk, and (7) Cash and Investments. 
 

Cash and investments

Unrestricted Pooled Cash 212,137$            

Restricted Pooled Cash 1,250,000           

Cash Held by Trustee 3,577,105           

Total cash and cash equivalents 5,039,242           

Investments held by Trustee 109,965,577        

Total cash and investments                     115,004,819$      
 

 
Please see the FPRS annual report for additional cash and investment details. 

 
Funding Policy 

 
 Section 1509.9 of the City Charter provides that the normal member contribution rates will provide 

an average annuity, at age 50, equal to 1/100 of the final compensation of members for each year 
of service according to tables adopted by the Board. The basic benefits otherwise funded by these 
contributions have now been fully funded by Contribution Agreement 16,900. Pursuant to the 
agreement, the City contributed $100,000,000 net proceeds from the issuance of pension bonds to 
FPRS on August 5, 1999. The net proceeds plus the existing assets of FPRS became sufficient to 
fully fund the basic benefits, the unfunded basic benefits, the 1919 benefits, and the cost-of-living 
adjustment (COLA) benefits. Contributions are recognized when due. Therefore, member 
contributions are suspended as long as basic benefits remain fully funded.  

 
 In October 2011, the Board and the City approved an Amended and Restated Contribution 

Agreement 20,823 (Amended Contribution Agreement), which permanently changes actuarial 
methodology used to calculate the plan’s funded percentage by adopting assumed interest rate and 
inflation assumptions for the June 30, 2011 valuation and for future valuations. The Amended 
Contribution Agreement 20,823 also required the City to issue pension obligation bonds that would 
yield approximately $46.6 million in net proceeds to the plan by March 31, 2012, which would 
meet the plan’s funding requirement if they were paid by that date because the net proceeds would 
be treated as if they had been assets of the plan as of June 30, 2011, and the City no longer owed 
supplemental contribution to the plan for FY 2011/2012. The City contributed $46,600,000 in net 
proceeds to the plan on March 29, 2012; therefore, the City no longer owed supplemental 
contribution to the plan for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012.  Pursuant to Section 1509.81 of the 
Charter, members also contribute an additional 5% of compensation for cost-of-living benefits.  
Because this is a flat rate and cost-of-living benefits are not fully funded, these contributions  
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Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System (Continued) 

 
continued. The contribution requirement of plan members and the City are established and may be 
amended by the Board within the provisions of the City Charter. 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the actuarial value of assets (AVA) funded percentage of the System, 
calculated in accordance with Agreement No. 20,823 and Agreement No. 16,900, was 76.1%.  As 
provided by Contribution Agreement No. 16,900, if the AVA funded percentage is below the 
minimum funding percentage of 79.5% for FY 2019, the City will reimburse the System in the 
following fiscal year subject to certain reimbursement limits. Based on the June 30, 2019 actuarial 
valuation, the funding deficiency was $4,952,000, or 3.4%, below the funding requirement of 
79.5% as of June 30, 2019. Total required supplemental payment is $3,390,000 for the FY 2020.    

 
Net Pension Liability 
 
At June 30, 2019, the Net Pension Liability of FPRS was as follows: 

 

Net Pension Liability 6/30/2019

Discount Rate 5.75%

Beginning Total Pension Liability (141,737,000)$     

Interest (7,781,000)          

Benefit Payments 12,824,000         

Expected versus Actual Experience (1,862,000)          

Ending Total Pension Liability (TPL) (138,556,000)$     

Beginning Fiduciary Net Position 

(FNP)
(118,932,000)$     

Net Investment Income (5,923,000)          

Benefit Payments 12,824,000         

Administrative Expenses 257,000              

Ending Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) (111,774,000)      

Net Pension Liability (NPL) (26,782,000)$      

FNP as a Percentage of TPL 80.67%
 

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and cost trends. Actuarially 
determined amounts are subject to continual review or modification as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  Projections of  
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 Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System (Continued) 

 
benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employers and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at 
the time of each valuation. Upon analysis provided by the System’s Actuary on May 15, 2019, 
the Board accepted the recommended assumptions (that were concurred with by City Treasury 
and the System’s Investment Advisor) for use in the preparation of the actuarial valuation for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The TPL was determined by the actuarial valuation 
performed as of June 30, 2019, using the following actuarial assumptions: 

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability, (Continued) 
 

Discount Rate 5.75%*

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases No active employees

Mortality
CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study, 

MP-2017

Geometric Real Rate of Return
Based on the CalPERS 2017 10-year 

Expected Geometric Rate of Return

   Large Cap US Equity 4.36%

   Small Cap US Equity 5.18%

   Foreign Equity 4.60%

   Core Fixed Income 1.47%

   TIPS 1.29%

   Short-Term Gov't-Grade Bonds 1.26%

   Senior Bank Loans 3.10%

   Hedge Funds 2.79%

   Core Real Estate 3.04%

Actuarial Assumptions 

* Discount Rate reflects assumed investment expense of 40bp.  
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries 

currently receiving benefits 204                 
Inactive employees entitled to but 

not yet receiving benefits -                     

Active employees -                     

    Total 204                 
 

 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate of 5.75% to measure the June 30, 2019 Total Pension Liability for accounting 
purposes was selected by the System actuary. The actuary performed a stochastic analysis of 
expected returns using the System’s target asset allocation and capital market assumptions from 
CalPERS’ investment advisors in 2013. The discount rate is the expected real long-term rate of  
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Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System (Continued) 
 
return determined by this analysis plus the inflation assumption of 2.75% less assumed investment 
expenses of 40 basis points.  Based on the assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on Plan investment of 5.75% was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2019. 
 
Discount Rate, (Continued) 

 
 
 

 
Changes in Pension Liability 

Asset Class

Target Asset 

Allocation

Large Cap US Equity 16.00%

Small Cap US Equity 4.00%

Foreign Equity 20.00%

Core Fixed Income 25.00%

TIPS 5.00%

Short-Term Gov't-Grade Bonds 10.00%

Senior Bank Loans 5.00%

Hedge Funds 5.00%

Real Estate 10.00%

Total 100.00%

A B C = B - A

Total Pension 

Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net 

Position

Net Pension 

Asset/(Liability)

Balance at 6/30/18 141,737,000$             118,932,000$           (22,805,000)$            

Changes Recognized for the 

Measurement Period:

Service Cost                                   -                                 -                                  - 

Liability                    7,781,000                                 -                 (7,781,000)

Differences between Expected and 

Actual Experience                    1,862,000                                 -                 (1,862,000)

Contribution from Employers                                   -                                 -                                  - 

Eontribution from Employees                                   -                                 -                                  - 

Net Investment Income -                                 5,923,000                                   5,923,000 

Benefit Payments (12,824,000)               (12,824,000)                                               - 

Administrative Expense -                                 (257,000)                                      (257,000)

Change of Assumptions -                                 -                                                                 - 

Net Change during 2018-19 (3,181,000)                 (7,158,000)                (3,977,000)                

Balance at 6/30/19 138,556,000$             111,774,000$           (26,782,000)$            

Increase (Decrease)
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Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System (Continued) 
 
Pension Expense 
 

Pension 

Expense/(Income)

Service Cost -$                                       

Interest on Total Pension Liability 7,781,000                          

Projected Earnings on Pension Plan    

Investments (6,470,000)                         

Recognized Differences between Projected 

and Actual Earnings 1,660,000                          

Recognized Differences between Expected 

and Actual Experience 1,862,000                          

Changes of Assumptions -                                         

Administrative Expenses 257,000                             

Total 5,090,000$                     

 
 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rates 
 

Examining the sensitivity of the NPL to changes in the discount rate by a 1% decrease, from 5.75% 
to 4.75%, revealed an increase in the NPL by $12,074,000 to a total NPL of $38,856,000. 
Conversely, increasing the discount rate by 1%, from 5.75% to 6.75% revealed a corresponding 
decrease in the NPL of $10,431,000 to total NPL of $16,351,000 as of June 30, 2019. 
 

Discount Rate  -1% 

(4.75%)

Current Discount 

Rate (5.75%)

Discount Rate +1%

(6.75%)

Total Pension Liaibility 150,630,000$              138,556,000$     128,125,000$         

Fiduciary Net Position 111,774,000                111,774,000       111,774,000           

Net Pension Liability 38,856,000                  26,782,000         16,351,000             

NPL Funded Percentage 74.2% 80.7% 87.2%

FPRS
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Pasadena Fire and Police Retirement System (Continued) 

 
Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Net Deferred of 

Resources

Net Difference between Projected and 

Actual Earnings on Pension Plan 

Investments 915,000$                        -$                                915,000$                    

Total 915,000$                      -$                                915,000$                  

FPRS

 
 
 

Measurement Period 

ended June 30:

Deferred 

Outflows/(Inflows) of 

Resources

2020 1,101,000$                  

2021 (623,000)                     

2022 326,000                      

2023 111,000                      

2024 -                                

FPRS
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans 
 
 Plan Description 
 
 All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s 

Miscellaneous Plan and Safety Plan (Plans), agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a 
common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit 
provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues 
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit 
provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

 

 Benefits Provided 
 
 CalPERS provide service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and 

death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are 
based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five 
years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members 
are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the 
following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W 
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees’ Retirement Law. 

 
  The Plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows: 
 

Hire date Prior to January 1, 2013 Hire date Prior to January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 Benefit formula 3% @ 55

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service

Benefit payments monthly for life Benefit payments monthly for life

Retirement age 50 Retirement age 50

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible 

compensation 2.00% to 2.50%

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible 

compensation 2.40% to 3.00%

Required employee contribution rates 7.748% Required employee contribution rates 9.239%

Required employer contribution rates 27.030% Required employer contribution rates 41.985%

Miscellaneous Safety
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 
 

Employees Covered 
 
At June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the plan: 

 
Miscellaneous Safety

Inactive employees or beneficiaries 

currently receiving benefits 1,706               362                

Inactive employees entitled to but 

not yet receiving benefits 1,035               131                

Active employees 1,409               364                

    Total 4,150              857               
 

 
Contribution Description 

 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan 
contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
The employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and 
the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are 
amended. It is the responsibility of the employer to make necessary accounting adjustments to 
reflect the impact due to any Employer-Paid Member Contributions or situations where members 
are paying a portion of the employer contribution. 
 
Net Pension Liability 

 
The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 
30, 2018, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 
using standard update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to 
determine the net pension liability is shown below.  
 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuations were determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions:  
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
 

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 

Mortality Rate Table
(1) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all 

Funds

Actuarial Assumptions 

(1)
 The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The 

table includes 15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 

Scale. For more details on this table, please refer to the 2017 experience study  
 

Change of Assumptions  
 

In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS 
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017.   

 

Discount Rate 
 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether 
the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS 
stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the 
actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets 
would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of 
the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate 
of 7.15 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress test 
results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be 
obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section. 
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using 
historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value 
of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the 
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash 
flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return 
was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for 
assumed administrative expenses.  
 
The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed: 
 

Asset Class 
(1)

New Strategic 

Allocation

Real Return 

Years 1 - 10 
(2)

Real Return 

Years 11+ 
(3)

Global Equity 50.00% 4.80% 5.98%

Fixed Income 28.00 1.00 2.62

Inflation Assets 0.00 0.77 1.81

Private Equity 8.00 6.30 7.23

Real Assets 13.00 3.75 4.93

Liquidity 1.00 0.00 (0.92)

(2)
  An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period

(3) 
 An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period

(1)
  In the System's CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is 

included in Short-term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity 

Securities and Global Debt Securities. 
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued) 
 
Miscellaneous 
 

A B C = B - A

Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net 

Position

Net Pension 

Asset/(Liability)

Balance at 6/30/17 1,095,031,469$                  782,003,191$                 $                          (313,028,278)

Changes Recognized for the 

Measurement Period:

Service Cost                           19,070,473                                       -                                (19,070,473)

Interest on the Total Pension 

Liability                           76,248,959                                       -                                (76,248,959)

Changes of Benefit Terms                                            -                                       -                                                  - 

Differences between Expected and 

Actual Experience                           (3,022,702)                                       -                                   3,022,702 

Changes of Assumption                           (7,442,869)                                       -                                   7,442,869 

Plan to Plan Resource Movement                                            -                             (1,921)                                         (1,921)

Contribution from Employers                                            -                      27,112,138                                 27,112,138 

Eontribution from Employees                                            -                        8,823,902                                   8,823,902 

Net Investment Income -                                          66,083,117                                                    66,083,117 

Benefit Payments, including Refunds 

of Employee Contribution (55,364,250)                        (55,364,250)                                                                    - 

Administrative Expense -                                          (1,218,576)                                                      (1,218,576)

Other Changes in Fiduciary Net -                                          -                                     -                                                

Other Miscellaneous 

Income(Expense) -                                          (2,314,097)                     (2,314,097)                                

Net Change during 2017-18 29,489,611                         43,120,313                    13,630,702                                

Balance at 6/30/18 1,124,521,080$                  825,123,504$                (299,397,576)$                          

Increase (Decrease)
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued) 
 
Safety 
 

A B C = B - A

Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net 

Position

Net Pension 

Asset/(Liability)

Balance at 6/30/17 609,324,775$                     439,634,308$                (169,690,467)$                          

Changes Recognized for the Measurement 

Period:

Service Cost                           12,756,843                                       -                                (12,756,843)

Interest on the Total Pension Liability                           43,215,347                                       -                                (43,215,347)

Changes of Benefit Terms                                            -                                       -                                                  - 

Differences between Expected and Actual 

Experience                             2,172,478                                       -                                  (2,172,478)

Changes of Assumption                              (994,610)                                       -                                      994,610 

Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement                                            -                             (1,095)                                         (1,095)

Contribution from Employers                                            -                      16,541,698                                 16,541,698 

Contribution from Employees                                            -                        4,197,458                                   4,197,458 

Net Investment Income -                                          37,156,382                                                    37,156,382 

Benefit Payments, including Refunds of 

Employee Contribution (24,941,212)                        (24,941,212)                                                                    - 

Administrative Expense -                                          (685,071)                                                            (685,071)

Other Miscellaneous Income (Expense) -                                          (1,300,962)                     (1,300,962)                                

Net Change during 2017-18 32,208,846                         30,967,198                    (1,241,648)                                

Balance at 6/30/18 641,533,621$                     470,601,506$                (170,932,115)$                          

Increase (Decrease)
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rates 
 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the measurement date, calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-
point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate         

-1% 

Current Discount 

Rate (7.15%)

Discount Rate 

+1%

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Assets) 442,630,595$       299,397,576$     180,329,159$       

Discount Rate         

-1% 

Current Discount 

Rate (7.15%)

Discount Rate 

+1%

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Assets) 263,489,735$       170,932,115$     95,408,807$        

Miscellaneous

Safety

 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this 
disclosure.  
 
Recognition of Gains and Losses 
  
Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net 
position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.  
 
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. 
The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense.  
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CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 

Recognition of Gains and Losses, (Continued) 
 

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:  
 

Difference between projected 

and actual earnings 5 year straight-line amortization 

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the 

expected average remaining service 

lives of all members that are provided 

with benefits (active, inactive, and 

retired) as of the beginning of the 

measurement period 

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by 

dividing the total future service years by the total number of plan 

participants (active, inactive, and retired).  Note that inactive employees 

and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0.  Also note that 

total future service is based on the members' probability of decrementing 

due to an event other than receiving a cash refund

 
 
The EARSL for the Plan for the measurement period ending June 30, 2018 is 3.5 years for 
Miscellaneous and 5.3 years for Safety, which was obtained by dividing the total service years of 
14,107 (Miscellaneous) and 4,453 (Safety) (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of the active 
employees) by 4,065 (Miscellaneous) and 845 (Safety) (the total number of participants: active, 
inactive, and retired). Note that inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes 
equal to 0. Also note that total future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing 
due to an event other than receiving a cash refund. 
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(18) Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 

Miscellaneous Safety

Pension Expense/(Income) Pension Expense/(Income)

Service Cost 19,070,473$                                     12,756,843$                                     

Interest on Total Pension Liability 76,248,959                                       43,215,347                                       

Changes of Benefit Terms -                                                        -                                                        

Recognized Changes of Assumptions 13,925,266                                       4,942,291                                         

Recognized Differences between Expected 

and Actual Experience (10,112,650)                                      (2,548,918)                                        

Plan to Plan Resource Movement 1,921                                                1,095                                                

Employee Contributions (8,823,902)                                        (4,197,458)                                        

Projected Earnings on Pension Plan 

Investments (54,971,927)                                      (31,193,372)                                      

Recognize Differences between Projected 

and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments (2,670,697)                                        (1,179,822)                                        

Administrative Expenses 1,218,576                                         685,071                                            

Other Miscellaneous (Income)Expense 2,314,097                                         1,300,962                                         

Total 36,200,116$                                  23,782,039$                                  

 
 
Note that no adjustments have been made for contributions subsequent to the measurement date. 
Adequate treatment of any contributions made after the measurement date is the responsibility of 
the employer.  
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(18) Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, 
(Continued) 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the City has deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                              

 

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Changes of Assumption 23,418,683$               (5,316,338)$                    22,755,551$              (3,632,018)$                    46,174,234$                   (8,948,356)$                  

Differences between Expected and 

Actual Experience
-                                 (8,267,730)                      1,762,576                  (7,091,750)                      1,762,576                       (15,359,480)                  

Net Difference between Projected 

and Actual Earnings on Pension 

Plan Investments

1,979,822                   -                                      1,296,328                  -                                      3,276,150                       -                                    

Contributions Subsequent to the 

Measurement Date
30,840,388                 -                                      17,841,573                -                                      48,681,961                     -                                    

Total 56,238,893$            (13,584,068)$               43,656,028$           (10,723,768)$               99,894,921$                (24,307,836)$             

Miscellaneous Safety Total

 
 
The amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the FY 2017-18 measurement 
period expense. 
 
The $30,840,388 and $17,841,573 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows or 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
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(18) Pension Plans (Continued) 
 

CalPERS Miscellaneous and Safety Plans (Continued) 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, 
(Continued) 
 

Measurement Period 

ended June 30:

Deferred 

Outflows/(Inflows) of 

Resources

Measurement Period 

ended June 30:

Deferred 

Outflows/(Inflows) of 

Resources

2019 19,999,351$                       2019 7,959,374$                         

2020 3,621,945                           2020 5,007,271                           

2021 (9,584,620)                          2021 1,358,519                           

2022 (2,222,238)                          2022 698,855                              

2023 -                                          2023 66,668                                

Miscellaneous Safety

 
 

 Defined Contribution Plan (PARS) 
 

The City provides pension benefits for employees not covered by CalPERS or FPRS through the 
PARS. This is a defined contribution plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Sections 401(a) and 501, and administered by Phase II Systems. In a defined contribution plan, 
benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees are 
eligible to participate from the date of employment. On October 29, 2012, the City adopted a Salary 
Resolution for the Non-Represented Non-Management employees requiring the covered 
employees to contribute the full 7.5% of their earnings effective December 31, 2012.  Prior to the 
adoption of the Salary Resolutions, the plan agreement required the City to contribute an amount 
equal to 4.0% of the employees’ earnings and the covered employee contributed 3.5%.  The City 
contributions for each employee were fully vested.   
 
The City’s payroll for employees covered by PARS for the year ended June 30, 2019, was 
$4,458,724. The covered employees made the total required 7.5% contributions of $334,404. 
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(19) Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions 
 

The City of Pasadena provides a subsidy to retirees of the City who are members of the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Pasadena Fire and Police Pension System.  Benefit 
provisions are established and amended through negotiations between the City and the respective 
unions. Two different levels of subsidy toward the purchase of medical insurance from CalPERS 
under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) are offered. These are 
currently at $136.00 or $88.40 per month depending on the bargaining unit or the unrepresented 
group the employee was a member. At the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation, the following current 
and former employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
  

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 668        

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 222        

Active plan members 1,839     

2,729     
 

 
Plan Description 

 
Eligibility.  The plan is an agent multiple-employer plan which provides benefits under PEMHCA 
to individuals who retire with the City and begin to collect a monthly benefit under one of the 
retirement plans sponsored by the City.  Employees who terminate under service retirement or 
disability retirement and certain survivors of Safety members who die in active service are eligible. 
 
Service Retirement:  Employees retiring directly from active status receive medical benefits 
commencing at retirement. Employee must be age 50 (or 52 if a “new member” as defined in the 
Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013) or older with 5 or more years of service. 

 
Disability Retirement:  Employees retiring directly from active status due to disability receive 
medical benefits commencing at retirement.  Employees are eligible for Industrial Disability 
retirement at hire and for Non-Industrial Disability retirement after 5 years of CalPERS service. 

136



CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(19) Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, (Continued) 
 
Pre-retirement Death: 
     
Safety Employees: 
 
Industrial: Survivor receives medical benefits commencing 
 immediately. 
 
Non-Industrial: Survivor receives medical benefits immediately if 
 death occurs after member reaches age 50 with 5 
 years of service.  
 
Miscellaneous Employees:    Survivor receives medical benefits immediately if  

   death occurs after member reaches age 50 with 5  
   years of service.  

 
Dependent Eligibility:     Dependents are not eligible for benefits. 
 
Survivor Eligibility:     Survivors are eligible for benefits if the retiree   

      elected a form of coverage providing for continued  
      pension payments to the retiree.    

 
Benefits: 
 
Medical Benefit:   Eligible retirees are provided a subsidy for medical 

benefits though PEHMCA. For the calendar year 2019, 
this monthly amount is $136.00 for certain classes of 
employees and $88.40 for remaining employees. 

 
 
Contributions 
 
The City contribution requirements have been established at the individual retiree levels of $136.00 
or $88.40 per month depending on bargaining unit membership and policy enacted by CalPERS 
pursuant to State Law.  These minimum requirements may be increased through future negotiations 
between the City and respective unions. In FY 2018, the City set aside $2 million in a Section 115 
trust account, which was recognized as a reduction to the OPEB liability.  The City has not made 
any contribution during fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
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(19) Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued) 
 

Net OPEB Liability 
 
The City’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total OPEB liability used 
to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2017, 
based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 
 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal – level percentage of pay-as-you-go 

basis 
Actuarial Assumptions 
Discount Rate    Pay-as-you-go – 3.15% per annum 
Inflation        2.75% per annum 
Payroll Increases   3.0% per annum, in aggregate 
Salary Increase For cost method purposes the merit increases from the 

CalPERS pension plan valuation will be used 
Healthcare Trend Rate Based on recent premium experience assuming 1%-2% 

increase due to market trends then reduced to a rate 
reflecting medical price inflation  

Investment Rate of Return  5.0% per annum 
Pre-retirement Turnover According to the termination rates under the most recent 

CalPERS pension plan valuation 
Pre-retirement Mortality According to the pre-retirement mortality rates under the 

most recent CalPERS pension plan valuation 
Post-retirement Mortality According to the post-retirement mortality rates under the 

most recent CalPERS pension plan valuation 
Retirement Age According to the retirement rates under the most recent 

CalPERS pension plan valuation 
Participation Rates 60% of eligible active employees are assumed to elect 

medical coverage at retirement. Future retirees are 
assumed to elect similar coverage as current retirees. 
Actual plan coverage is used for current retirees. 

Spouse Coverage 50% of future retirees are assumed to elect coverage for 
their spouse. Male spouses are assumed to be 3 years older 
than female spouses. Actual spouse coverage and spouse 
ages are used for current retirees. 
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(19) Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued) 
 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the OPEB 
plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Long-term

Target expected real

Asset Class Allocation rate of return

Fixed Income 60.00% 1.75%

Equity 35.00% 5.00%

Cash 5.00% 0.00%

Total 100.00%
 

. 
Changes in the OPEB Liability 

 

A B C = A-B

 Total OPEB Liability 
 Plan Fiduciary Net 

Position 

 Net OPEB 

(Asset)/Liability 

Balance at 06/30/2018 72,261,944$                  2,002,193$                70,259,751$         

Service Cost 3,216,534                      -                                 3,216,534             

Interest 2,596,030                      -                                 2,596,030             

Changes of Assumptions 3,664,587                      -                                 3,664,587             

Contributions - Employer -                                     2,612,362                  (2,612,362)           

Net investment income -                                     133,177                     (133,177)              

Benefit payments, net (2,612,362)                     (2,612,362)                 -                           

Administrative Expenses -                                     (9,677)                        9,677                    

Net Changes 6,864,789                      123,500                     6,741,289             

Balance at 06/30/2019 79,126,733$                  2,125,693$                77,001,040$         

Increase(Decrease)

Changes Recognized for the 

Measurement Period:
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(19) Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued) 

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 
3.15%, as well as what the net OPEB would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement 
period ended June 30, 2019: 
 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

(2.15%) Rate (3.15%) (4.15%)

Net OPEB Liability 89,139,393$   77,001,040$        67,200,694$   

 
 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Health Care Cost Trend Rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using health care cost 
trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, 
for measurement period ended June 30, 2019: 
 

Current Healthcare

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rates 1% Increase

(5.00%HMO/5.50% PPO (6.00%HMO/6.50% PPO (7.00%HMO/7.50% PPO

decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to

4.00%HMO/4.00%PPO) 5.00%HMO/5.00%PPO) 6.00%HMO/6.00%PPO)

Net OPEB Liability 64,752,397$                         77,001,040$                         92,579,800$                         
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

140



CITY OF PASADENA 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, (Continued) 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

(19) Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued) 

 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $6,250,566. As of 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
form the following sources:  
 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Changes of Assumption 2,931,670$       (592,870)$      

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience -                       -                     

Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments -                       (27,962)          

Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date -                       -                     

Total 2,931,670$       (620,832)$      

 
 
The $2,931,670 reported as deferred outflows of resources and $620,832 reported as deferred 
inflows related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

Deferred

Fiscal Year Ended Outflows/(Inflows) of

June 30: Resources

2020 528,193$                     

2021 528,193                      

2022 528,193                      

2023 726,259                      

2024 -                                
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(20) Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Primary Government 
 

 “Take or Pay” Contracts 
  

The City’s electric operation has entered into various long term “Take or Pay” contracts to provide 
for current and future electric generating capacity and transmission of energy for City customers. 
The City is obligated to pay the amortized cost of indebtedness regardless of the ability of the 
contracting agency to provide electricity and/or transmission, as applicable. The original 
indebtedness will be amortized by adding the financing costs to purchase energy over the life of 
the contract. The contracts expire at various times through FY 2036.  The total commitment under 
these contracts as of June 30, 2019 is $175 million. 

 
Additional financial information on the SCPPA may be obtained by contacting the City of Pasadena 
Department of Water and Power at 150 South Los Robles, Suite 200, Pasadena, CA 91101. 

 
Stranded Investments 
 
In response to California Assembly Bill 1890 (“AB1890”), the City chose to open its market to 
competition on January 1, 2000. The City has long-term contracts with IPA and SCPPA, most of 
which obligate the City to purchase power and/or services at cost, which was projected to be higher 
than market in a deregulated environment. As a result, the City was faced with a “stranded 
investment” with a net present value estimated to be approximately $89.2 million in 2019. The City 
has implemented the approved Stranded Investment Utilization Plan by direct defeasance of the 
debt service of IPP outstanding bonds and mitigation of variable energy costs. 
 
Additional information related to IPA and SCPPA is available online from Water and Power 
Department’s website or may be obtained by contacting the department at 150 South Los Robles, 
Suite 200, Pasadena, CA 91101. 
 
Lawsuits and Claims 
 
A number of suits and claims are pending against the City arising in the normal course of 
operations. In the opinion of management, the results of such legal actions will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of the City. 
 
In 2017, the City was served with a class action lawsuit entitled Komesar v. City of Pasadena, 
which generally asserts that the City’s electric utility rates are more than reasonably necessary to 
operate the utility to the extent they finance the City’s annual Charter-authorized transfers from the 
Light & Power Fund to the General Fund, which was $17.6 million for FY 2019.  The lawsuit seeks 
a refund of the transferred funds and a court order preventing the 
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(20) Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 
 
Primary Government (Continued) 
 
Lawsuits and Claims, (Continued) 
 
City from continuing to impose electric rates based on its current rate structure, until and unless the 
City obtains voter approval.  The City is vigorously defending the allegations, and no trial date is 
set in the case. 
 
Commitments 
 
The City has various contracts with significant commitments that are in force at June 30, 2019.  
These include a number of material power purchase contracts which extend over many years. 
 

 Other 
 
Certain federal and state revenues are received for specific purposes and are subject to audit by the 
grantor agencies. City management is of the opinion that adjustments, if any, resulting from such 
audits will not be significant. 

 
(21) Restatement of Beginning Net Position 

 
Primary Government 
 
In FY 2019, Governmental Activities made some corrections to the Work in Progress account 
balance. The corrections were due to outstanding costs in Work in Progress relating to the PC 
replacement that should have been previously expensed.  These corrections resulted in a total 
restatement of the beginning net position of the Governmental Activities by $259,966. 
 
The following schedule summarizes the effect of the prior period adjustment to the beginning net 
positions as of July 1, 2018: 

 
Governmental

Activities

Net Position at July 1, 2018 146,727,306$       

Adjustment of WIP (259,966)             

Net Position, as restated 146,467,340$       
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(22) Subsequent Events 
 

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the audit report. 
 
Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2019A Series 
 
On June 10, 2019, the City Council authorized the issuance of Pasadena Electric Revenue 
Refunding bonds for refunding all of the City’s outstanding Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
2009 Series and to pay the cost of issuance of the 2019A Bonds.  On July 22, 2019, $11,575,000 
of Series 2019A Bonds, the entire issue, was sold to Wells Fargo Bank pursuant to competitive 
bidding. 
 
Pension Obligation Refunding Bonds Authorized 
 
On September 23, 2019, City Council authorized the issuance of one or more series or subseries of 
City of Pasadena Pension Obligation Refunding Bonds to refund all of the outstanding 2015 Series 
Pension Obligation Bonds.  At that time $119,460,000 of the 2015 bonds were outstanding and 
interest rates low enough to provide a debt service savings to the General Fund of approximately 
$460,000 annually.  Prior to the issuance interest rates increased reducing the benefit to the City 
and staff is waiting for more favorable interest rate environment to sell the bonds.  As of the date 
of financial statement issuance, the refunding bonds have not been issued. 
 
Lease Financing for Public Safety Radio Communications Equipment and Accessories 

 
On December 9, 2019, City Council authorized a lease financing which will generate $6,800,000 
for the purchase of public safety radio equipment and accessories. 
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